

2023-2024 MICHIGAN'S AMERICORPS

MANDATORY SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION and APPENDICES & ATTACHMENTS

Table of Contents

2022 AMERICORPS STATE & NATIONAL MANDATORY SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION	3
APPENDIX I: AMERICORPS FOCUS AREAS	11
APPENDIX II: ECONOMIC MOBILITY CORPS	12
APPENDIX III: AMERICORPS PUBLIC HEALTH AMERICORPS	14
ATTACHMENT A: PERFORMANCE MEASURES INSTRUCTIONS	17
ATTACHMENT B: DETAILED BUDGET INSTRUCTIONS FOR COST REIMBURSEMENT GRANTS	21
ATTACHMENT C: BUDGET WORKSHEET	29
ATTACHMENT D: DETAILED BUDGET INSTRUCTIONS FOR FIXED AMOUNT GRANTS	33
ATTACHMENT E: BUDGET WORKSHEET FOR FIXED AMOUNT GRANTS	35
ATTACHMENT F: BUDGET CHECKLIST	36
ATTACHMENT G: ALTERNATIVE MATCH SCHEDULE REQUEST INSTRUCTIONS	39
ATTACHMENT H: BEALE CODES AND COUNTY-LEVEL ECONOMIC DATA FOR ALTERNATIVE MATCH	
REQUESTS	40

2022 AMERICORPS STATE & NATIONAL MANDATORY SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

The AmeriCorps State & National Mandatory Supplemental Information is intended to provide applicants with additional information for the preparation of their applications under the AmeriCorps State and National Notice of Federal Funding Opportunity. The Supplemental Information provides both detailed definitions of certain terms included in the Notice as well as additional details regarding how to properly file an application under the Notice. This Supplemental Information is incorporated by reference in the Notice, and applicants must comply with any requirements stated in this Supplemental Information.

AmeriCorps Member: An AmeriCorps member is an individual who engages in community service through an approved national service position. Members may receive a living allowance and other benefits while serving. Upon successful completion of their service, members earn a Segal AmeriCorps Education Award that they can use to pay for higher education expenses or apply to qualified student loans.

Capacity Building: A set of activities that expand the scale, reach, efficiency, or effectiveness of programs and organizations. These activities achieve lasting positive outcomes for the beneficiary populations served by AmeriCorps-supported organizations (i.e., AmeriCorps programs). As a general rule, AmeriCorps considers capacity building activities to be *indirect services* that enable AmeriCorps -supported organizations to provide more, better, and sustained *direct services*. Grantees cannot solely intent for capacity building activities to support the administration or operations of the organization. Capacity building activities must:

- 1) Support or enhance the program delivery model
- 2) Respond to the program's goal of increasing, expanding, or enhancing services in order to address the most pressing needs identified in the community
- 3) Enable the program to provide a sustained level of more or better direct services after the capacity building services end.

Cost Reimbursement Grants: These grants fund a portion of program operating costs and AmeriCorps member living allowances, with flexibility to use all of the funds for allowable costs regardless of whether or not the program recruits and retains all AmeriCorps members. Cost reimbursement grants include a formal matching requirement and require the submission of a budget and financial reports.

Enrollment Rate: The AmeriCorps member enrollment rate is calculated as slots filled, plus refill slots filled, divided by slots awarded.

Evidence-based: Evidence-based programs that have been rigorously evaluated and have demonstrated positive results for at least one key desired outcome. Rigorous evaluation means conducting at least one Randomized Controlled Trial (RCT) or Quasi-Experimental Design (QED) evaluation of the same intervention described in the application.

Evidence-based interventions on the AmeriCorps Evidence Exchange: Interventions supported by positive results from rigorous evaluations that are documented at Evidence Exchange.

Evidence-based interventions include but are not limited to the following:

- Environmental Stewardship: <u>Evidence Brief: Effective AmeriCorps-Funded Environmental Stewardship</u>
 Programs
- Economic Opportunity: Evidence Brief: Effective CNCS-Funded Economic Opportunity Programs
- Education: Evidence Brief: Effective CNCS-Funded Education Programs
- Healthy Futures: Evidence Brief: Effective CNCS-Funded Healthy Futures Programs

Interventions funded in FY22 assessed as having strong or moderate evidence include:

- Evaluation of College Possible's College-Fit Initiative 2018-2020
- REACH Corps FY19 End of Grant Evaluation
- Teach For America National AmeriCorps Evaluation: 2017–18 and 2018–19 School Years
- Birth and Beyond AmeriCorps: AmeriCorps Quasi- Experimental Program Evaluation 2018-2021

Evidence-informed: Programs in this category use the best available knowledge, research, and evaluation to guide program design and implementation, but do not have scientific research or rigorous evaluation of the intervention described in the application.

Applicants may be evidence-informed if they have incorporated research from other evidence-based programs into their program designs and/or have collected performance measurement data on the intervention described in the application.

Evidence Tiers

Pre-preliminary evidence means the applicant has not submitted an outcome or impact evaluation of the same intervention described in the application, although the applicant may have collected some performance data on the intervention (e.g., data on intervention outputs and/or outcomes). Applicants in this tier must describe in the Evidence Base section of the application how their program design is evidence-informed (see definition above). Applicants may also cite prior performance measure data if applicable.

Preliminary evidence means the applicant has submitted up to two outcome evaluation reports (non-experimental) that evaluated the same intervention described in the application and yielded positive results on one or more key desired outcomes of interest as depicted in the applicant's logic model. The outcome evaluations may either have been conducted internally by the applicant organization or by an entity external to the applicant. The study design must include pre- and post-assessments without a statistically matched comparison group or a post-assessment comparison between intervention and comparison groups. In some cases, a retrospective pre-post assessment may be considered, but its use must be justified in the text of the evaluation report.

AmeriCorps grantees recompeting for their third competitive grant cycle are required to submit an evaluation report of their AmeriCorps funded program. The AmeriCorps -required evaluation report may count towards one of the two reports allowed for the Preliminary evidence tier or may be submitted in addition to this. In the latter case, all three evaluation reports will be considered against the review criteria.

If the applicant is not required to submit an evaluation report of their AmeriCorps funded program, then more than two reports will not be considered.

Moderate evidence means the applicant has submitted up to two well-designed and well-implemented evaluation reports that evaluated the same intervention described in the application and identified evidence of effectiveness on one or more key desired outcomes of interest as depicted in the applicant's logic model. Evidence of effectiveness (or positive findings) is determined using experimental design evaluations (i.e., Randomized Controlled Trials (RCT)) or Quasi-Experimental Design evaluations (QED) with statistically matched comparison (i.e., counterfactual) and treatment groups. The ability to generalize the findings from the RCT or QED beyond the study context may be limited (e.g., single-site.) The evaluations were conducted by an independent entity external to the organization implementing the intervention.

AmeriCorps grantees recompeting for their third competitive grant cycle are required to submit an evaluation report of their AmeriCorps funded program. The AmeriCorps-required evaluation report may

count towards one of the two reports allowed for the Moderate evidence tier or may be submitted in addition to this. In the latter case, all three evaluation reports will be considered against the review criteria.

If the applicant is not required to submit an evaluation report of their AmeriCorps funded program, then more than two reports will not be considered.

Strong evidence means the applicant has submitted up to two evaluation reports demonstrating that the same intervention described in the application has been tested nationally, regionally, or at the state-level (e.g., multi-site) using a well-designed and well-implemented experimental design evaluation (i.e., Randomized Controlled Trial (RCT)) or a Quasi-Experimental Design evaluation (QED) with statistically matched comparison (i.e., counterfactual) and treatment groups.

Alternatively, the proposed intervention's evidence may be based on multiple (up to two) well-designed and well-implemented QEDs or RCTs of the same intervention described in the application in different locations or with different populations within a local geographic area. The overall pattern of evaluation findings must be consistently positive on one or more key desired outcomes of interest as depicted in the applicant's logic model. Findings from the RCT or QED evaluations may be generalized beyond the study context. The evaluations were conducted by an independent entity external to the organization implementing the intervention.

AmeriCorps grantees recompeting for their third competitive grant cycle are required to submit an evaluation report of their AmeriCorps funded program. The AmeriCorps required evaluation report may count towards one of the two reports allowed for the Strong evidence tier or may be submitted in addition to this. In the latter case, all three evaluation reports will be considered against the review criteria.

If the applicant is not required to submit an evaluation report of their AmeriCorps funded program, then more than two reports will not be considered.

Impact evaluation: An evaluation that provides statistical evidence of how well a program achieves its desired outcomes and what effect it has on service recipients and/or service participants compared to what would have happened in the absence of the program. Impact evaluations must be designed to provide evidence of a causal relationship between program activities and outcomes (45 C.F.R. § 2522.700). Grantees must use an experimental or quasi-experimental evaluation design (i.e., the evaluation must include a control group or a statistically matched comparison group).

Same intervention described in the application: The intervention evaluated in submitted evaluation reports must match the intervention proposed in the application in the following areas, all of which must be clearly described in the Program Design and Logic Model sections of the application:

- Characteristics of the beneficiary population, including evidence of current or historic inequities facing the population
- Characteristics of the population delivering the intervention
- Dosage (frequency, duration) and design of the intervention, including all key components and activities
- The context in which the intervention is delivered
- Outcomes of the intervention

Evaluation reports that do not sufficiently match the intervention proposed by the applicant will not be considered applicable and will not be reviewed or receive any points.

Fixed Amount Grants: These grants provide a fixed amount of funding per Member Service Year (MSY) that is substantially lower than the amount required to operate the program. Organizations use their own or other resources to cover the remaining costs. Programs are not required to submit budgets or financial reports, there

is no specific match requirement, and programs are not required to track and maintain documentation of match. However, AmeriCorps provides only a portion of the cost of running the program and organizations must raise the additional resources needed to run the program.

Programs can access the funds, provided they recruit and retain the members supported under the grant based on the MSY level awarded. Professional Corps programs applying for operational funding through a Fixed Amount grant must submit a budget in support of their request for operational funds.

- Full-cost Fixed Amount grants: Fixed Amount grants are available for programs that enroll all types of
 member slots and use their own resources to cover all other costs. Professional Corps may only have
 full-time members. Programs can access funds under the grant based on enrolling and retaining the full
 complement of members supported under the grant.
- Education Award Grants (EAP) Fixed Amount grant: Programs apply for a small fixed amount per MSY, can enroll all types of member slots, and use their own resources to cover all other costs. Programs can access funds under the grant based on enrolling the full complement of members supported under the grant. As with full-cost fixed amount grants, there are no specific match or financial reporting requirements for EAP fixed amount grants.

State Commissions can withhold up to 2% administrative funds from fixed price grants from single state applicants that are not competitive planning grants.

Match Replacement Funds: are available for Native Nation applicants and are additional agency funds to meet the match requirements. For operating grants, applicants can request up to 85% of total member living allowance as match replacement and 100% of required match for non-member living allowances as match replacement. For Native Nation planning grants, applicants can request 100% of their required match as match replacement.

Match Waiver: can be requested to decrease the required match amount. Please see the Match Waiver information for AmeriCorps State and National Grantees located on the AmeriCorps website's <u>Manage Your</u> Grant webpage.

Member Service Location: A member service location is the site at which an AmeriCorps member is placed to provide their service to the community.

Member Service Year (MSY): One Member Service Year (MSY) is equivalent to a full-time AmeriCorps position (at least 1,700 service hours.) Applicants are not required to apply for a minimum number of MSYs.

National Direct Applicants

Multi-state: Organizations that propose to operate AmeriCorps programs in more than one state or territory apply directly to AmeriCorps.

Federally-recognized Indian Tribes: Applicants that are Native Nations apply directly to AmeriCorps (see the Eligible Applicants section in the Notice.)

State and Territories without Commissions: Applicants in South Dakota, American Samoa, the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands, and the U.S. Virgin Islands apply directly to AmeriCorps because this State and Territories have not established a State Commission.

Note: All applicants must select the correct NOFA in eGrants that corresponds to their national direct applicant status as listed above.

Operating Site: An operating site is the organization that manages the AmeriCorps program on behalf of the multi-state recipient of the grant from AmeriCorps. A multi-state grantee must have an operating site in each state in which it has AmeriCorps members. AmeriCorps members may be placed at the operating site, or an operating site may place AmeriCorps members at multiple member service locations.

AmeriCorps anticipates that applicants have a carefully considered plan for their project implementation and have identified operating sites based on demonstrated community needs. AmeriCorps expects the sites proposed at the time of application to align with those involved in project implementation. However, if necessary, applicants can modify their list of operating sites during the clarification process or through an amendment to the application, if funded.

Other Revenue: funds necessary to operate an AmeriCorps program that are not AmeriCorps funds or grantee share (match) identified in the budget. Programs should not enter the total operating budget for their organization unless the entire operating budget supports the AmeriCorps program. Programs that have additional revenue sources not included in the matching funds section of the budget should provide the amount of this additional revenue that supports the program. This amount should not include the AmeriCorps or grantee share amounts in the budget. Fixed amount grantees should enter all non-AmeriCorps funds that support the program in this field. All fixed grants will have other revenue.

Planning Grants: A planning grant provides support to a grant recipient to develop an AmeriCorps program that will engage AmeriCorps members in implementing evidence-based interventions to solve community problems. Grant recipients are awarded up to \$240,000 for a 12-month planning period and are expected to be better prepared to compete for an AmeriCorps program grant in the following grant cycle. A planning grant may <u>not</u> be used to support AmeriCorps members. Applicants must apply for a Cost Reimbursement grant. The project period is no more than a year, with a start date proposed by the applicant. The project start date may <u>not</u> occur prior to the date AmeriCorps awards the grant.

Professional Corps: A Professional Corps is a program model composed of AmeriCorps members serving as professionals, i.e., teachers, health care providers, police officers, engineers, attorneys, or other professionals. The programs recruit and place qualified members in communities with an inadequate number of such professionals. Professional Corps applicants and/or applicants determined to be a Professional Corps by AmeriCorps must demonstrate that the community in which it will place AmeriCorps members serving as professionals has an inadequate number of said professionals.

Professional Corps members' salaries/compensation, including childcare, are paid entirely by the organizations with which the members serve and are not included in the budget request to AmeriCorps. The living allowance or salary provided to AmeriCorps members in Professional Corps programs does not count toward the matching requirement. AmeriCorps requires Professional Corps programs to cover the operating expenses associated with the AmeriCorps program through non-AmeriCorps resources. AmeriCorps will only consider operating funds of up to \$1,000 per MSY if an applicant is able to demonstrate significant organizational financial need based on the materials reviewed by AmeriCorps. These grants are fixed amount grants.

Applicants may propose any authorized program type. In the case that a proposed program fits more than one program type (e.g., a program could be either a professional corps or a traditional program), AmeriCorps staff will make a determination as to program type that will be considered for funding. The determination will be based on data provided within the application and supplemental materials submitted with the application. The determination may be different from the program type proposed by the applicant.

AmeriCorps reserves the right to determine if an applicant (whether or not the applicant has applied as a Professional Corps) has sufficiently demonstrated that they cannot effectively operate an AmeriCorps program without receiving AmeriCorps operating funds. There may be specific circumstances where AmeriCorps determines that a legal applicant has not demonstrated the need for operational grant funds due to other funding resources. Where AmeriCorps due diligence review of an application shows that the applicant has a historically high level of support from non-AmeriCorps sources and as a result has levels of unrestricted funding that exceeds the requested level of AmeriCorps funding, AmeriCorps may choose to not provide operational grant funding.

Prohibited Activities: While charging time to the AmeriCorps program, accumulating service or training hours, or otherwise performing activities supported by the AmeriCorps program or AmeriCorps, staff and members may not engage in the following activities (see 45 CFR § 2520.65):

- 1. Attempting to influence legislation
- 2. Organizing or engaging in protests, petitions, boycotts, or strikes
- 3. Assisting, promoting, or deterring union organizing
- 4. Impairing existing contracts for services or collective bargaining agreements
- 5. Engaging in partisan political activities, or other activities designed to influence the outcome of an election to any public office
- 6. Participating in, or endorsing, events or activities that are likely to include advocacy for or against political parties, political platforms, political candidates, proposed legislation, or elected officials
- 7. Engaging in religious instruction, conducting worship services, providing instruction as part of a program that includes mandatory religious instruction or worship, constructing or operating facilities devoted to religious instruction or worship, maintaining facilities primarily or inherently devoted to religious instruction or worship, or engaging in any form of religious proselytization
- 8. Providing a direct benefit to a. a business organized for profit, b. a labor union, c. a partisan political organization, d. a nonprofit organization that fails to comply with the restrictions contained in section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 related to engaging in political activities or substantial amount of lobbying except that nothing in these provisions shall be construed to prevent participants from engaging in advocacy activities undertaken at their own initiative, and e. an organization engaged in the religious activities described in paragraph C. 7. above, unless AmeriCorps assistance is not used to support those religious activities
- 9. Conducting a voter registration drive or using AmeriCorps funds to conduct a voter registration drive
- 10. Providing abortion services or referrals for receipt of such services
- 11. Such other activities as AmeriCorps may prohibit.

AmeriCorps members may not engage in the above activities directly or indirectly by recruiting, training, or managing others for the primary purpose of engaging in one of the activities listed above. Individuals may exercise their rights as private citizens and may participate in the activities listed above on their own initiative, on non-AmeriCorps time, and using non-AmeriCorps funds.

Retention Rate: The AmeriCorps member retention rate is calculated as the number of members exited with education award (full or partial award) divided by the number of members enrolled.

Rural Communities: AmeriCorps uses rural-urban commuting area (RUCA) codes to classify program addresses as either rural or urban for analytic purposes. RUCA codes classify U.S. census tracts using measures of population density, urbanization, and daily commuting. Census tracts with an urban cluster population less than 50,000 are considered rural (RUCA codes 4-10). Applicants are encouraged to designate themselves as serving rural communities if some or all service locations are in rural areas as defined by RUCA codes or if the program can provide other compelling evidence that the program is rural in the narrative portion of the application. This self-designation will be considered in grant-making decisions.

For more information about RUCA codes, please visit the <u>USDA website</u>. The Office of Grant Administration uses Beale Codes when assessing alternative match requirements as required by Statue (45 CFR 2521.60(c)).

Same Project: Two projects will be considered the same if they: address the same issue areas, address the same priorities, address the same objectives, serve the same target communities and population, or utilize the same sites.

Existing grantees must get approval from agency staff to be considered a new project. If an applicant is applying for a different program model (a new project), select New. Current and previous grantees need to get approval from agency staff to be considered a new project. AmeriCorps will consider a project to be new if there is a meaningful difference between it and previous projects in a comparison of the following characteristics, among others: the objectives and priorities of the projects; the nature of the services provided; the program staff, participants, and volunteers involved; the geographic locations in which the services are provided; the populations served; and the proposed community partnerships. (§ 2522.340).

Requests to be considered a new project should include information about how the new project differs from the previous project in the characteristics noted above. The request should also include the proposed name of the new project. AmeriCorps staff will review the request to determine if the proposed project does represent a meaningful difference from the previous project or if the proposed project is an example of natural program evolution over time. If it is determined that the project is new, agency staff will create a new project in eGrants. Applicants must request new projects significantly in advance of their application deadline.

Single-State Applicants Definition for the Competitive and Public Health AmeriCorps NOFOs: Single-state applicants are organizations that propose to operate in only one state; they must apply through the Governor-appointed State or Territory Commissions. Each State and Territory Commission administers its own selection process and submits to AmeriCorps the applicants it selects to compete for funding. Single-State applicants must contact their State Commissions to learn about their state or territory processes and deadlines which may be significantly *earlier* than the AmeriCorps deadlines and may have additional requirements. The list of State and Territory Commissions can be found on AmeriCorps website.

A single-state application submitted directly to AmeriCorps by the applicant rather than the State Commission will be considered noncompliant and will not be reviewed.

Single-State Applicants Definition for the AmeriCorps State and National Planning Grants NOFO: Single-state applicants are organizations that propose to operate in only one state; they must apply directly to AmeriCorps as a National Direct.

Unallowable Activities: In addition to the *Prohibited Activities*, the following restrictions also apply to the service of AmeriCorps members:

Nonduplication: AmeriCorps assistance may not be used to duplicate an activity that is already available in the locality of a program. AmeriCorps assistance will not be provided to a private nonprofit entity to conduct activities that are the same or substantially equivalent to activities provided by a State or local government agency in which such entity resides unless the entity complies with the following "nondisplacement" requirements. Note: In section below Corporation = AmeriCorps

Nondisplacement:

- 1. An employer may not displace an employee or position, including partial displacement such as reduction in hours, wages, or employment benefits, as a result of the use by such employer of a participant in a program receiving Corporation assistance.
- 2. An organization may not displace a volunteer by using a participant in a program receiving Corporation assistance.
- 3. A service opportunity will not be created under this chapter that will infringe in any manner on the promotional opportunity of an employed individual.
- 4. A participant in a program receiving Corporation assistance may not perform any services or duties or engage in activities that would otherwise be performed by an employee as part of the assigned duties of such employee.
- 5. A participant in any program receiving assistance may not perform any services or duties, or engage in activities, that
 - i. Will supplant the hiring of employed workers; or
 - ii. Are services, duties, or activities with respect to which an individual has recall rights pursuant to a collective bargaining agreement or applicable personnel procedures.
- 6. A participant in any program receiving assistance may not perform services or duties that have been performed by or were assigned to any
 - i. Presently employed worker;
 - ii. Employee who recently resigned or was discharged;
 - iii. Employee who is subject to a reduction in force or who has recall rights pursuant to a collective bargaining agreement or applicable personnel procedures;
 - iv. Employee who is on leave (terminal, temporary, vacation, emergency, or sick); or
 - v. Employee who is on strike or who is being locked out.

APPENDIX I: AMERICORPS FOCUS AREAS

AmeriCorps Focus Areas

The National and Community Service Act of 1990, as amended by the Serve America Act, emphasizes measuring the impact of service and focusing on a core set of issue areas. In order to carry out Congress's intent and to maximize the impact of investment in national service, and to achieve the goals laid out in our Strategic Plan (2022-2026), AmeriCorps has the following Focus Areas:

Disaster Services

Helping individuals and communities prepare for, respond to, recover from, and mitigate the effects of disasters and increase community resiliency.

Economic Opportunity

Improving the economic well-being and security of underserved individuals.

Education

Improving educational outcomes for underserved people, especially children. AmeriCorps is particularly interested in program designs that support youth engagement and service learning as strategies to achieve high educational outcomes.

Environmental Stewardship

Supporting communities to become more resilient through measures that reduce greenhouse gas emissions, conserve land and water, increase renewable energy use and improve at-risk ecosystems, especially in underserved households and communities.

Healthy Futures

Supporting for health needs within communities, including mitigating the impacts of COVID-19 and other public health crises, access to care, aging in place, and addressing childhood obesity, especially in underserved communities.

Veterans and Military Families

Improving the quality of life of veterans, military families, caregivers, and survivors.

APPENDIX II: ECONOMIC MOBILITY CORPS

About the CDFI Fund and CDFIs

The mission of the U.S. Treasury Department's Community Development Financial Institution Fund (CDFI Fund) is to expand economic opportunity for underserved people and communities by supporting the growth and capacity of a national network of community development lenders, investors, and financial service providers known as Community Development Financial Institutions (CDFIs).

CDFIs are community-based financial institutions that have a common goal of filling financing gaps in underserved, low-income areas. As community-based institutions, they possess a keen sensitivity to needs of local residents and businesses, and their creation reflects a bottom-up, rather than a top-down, approach to community investment and revitalization.

Currently, there are more than 1,100 CDFIs that are certified by the CDFI Fund serving urban and rural communities throughout the United States. CDFIs are found in all fifty states, the District of Columbia, Guam, and Puerto Rico. They bridge diverse public and private sector interests to serve people and places that traditional financial institutions usually do not. CDFIs provide:

- loans for businesses and projects that otherwise would not receive for financing;
- safe, affordable banking services that otherwise would not be available in the community;
- loan rates and terms that are more flexible than those offered by traditional lenders; and
- development services—such as business planning, credit counseling, and homebuyer education—to help their borrowers use credit effectively and build financial strength.

As a result, CDFIs support the creation of small businesses and local jobs, and the development of affordable housing, community facilities, and schools—all in places where economic opportunity is needed most.

About the Economic Mobility Corps

A joint initiative of the CDFI Fund and AmeriCorps, the Economic Mobility Corps (EMC) places full-time AmeriCorps members at Certified CDFIs to enhance their capacity to provide financial literacy, financial planning, budgeting, saving, and other financial counseling activities in distressed and underserved areas. Economic Mobility Corps members will be placed in Certified CDFIs and will receive training on the principles of financial counseling and financial literacy. A Certified CDFI is an entity that the CDFI Fund has officially notified that it meets all CDFI certification requirements. Only Certified CDFI's are eligible to receive EMC members.

This initiative will fund up to 61 full-time members a year for two years.

Who is Eligible for a EMC Award

Organizations that meet the AmeriCorps State and National eligibility criteria. Additionally, applicants that are Certified CDFIs and organizations with CDFI Fund awards will be considered ineligible for award if the applicant has:

- a previously executed award agreement(s), as of the date of the Application, (i) the CDFI Fund has
 determined that such entity is noncompliant or found in default with a previously executed agreement,
 and (ii) the CDFI Fund has provided written notification that such entity is ineligible to apply for or
 receive any future CDFI Fund awards or allocations. Such entities will be ineligible to apply for such time
 period as specified by the CDFI Fund in writing. Applicants that have pending noncompliance issues of
 any of its previously executed award agreement(s), are eligible to receive an award if the CDFI Fund has
 not yet made a final compliance determination.
- defaulted on a loan from the CDFI Fund within five years of the application deadline.

Preference will be given to applicants that intend to enroll veterans as AmeriCorps members and/or serve rural areas.

AmeriCorps Member Position Description

Economic Mobility Corps members will strengthen the capacity of Certified CDFIs to provide financial literacy, financial counseling, and financial planning services offered by the Certified CDFIs, to distressed and underserved individuals. Duties include:

- conducting community outreach and recruitment of new clients to the Certified CDFI's counseling and planning services and programs;
- assisting or conducting one-on-one or group orientation sessions for new program clients to explain the Certified CDFI's services, as well as the responsibilities of the client;
- providing financial planning workshops and individual financial counseling to meet the needs of Certified CDFI clients, including conducting group education meetings, and delivering workshops, webinars and meetings;
- assisting in the development and execution of marketing strategies to promote program client participation in Certified CDFI-sponsored financial counseling and education programs;
- providing program clients with information on the different financial products and services (e.g., loan products, checking/savings accounts, etc.) offered by the Certified CDFI;
- providing program clients with information on local, state, and federal government programs that offer relevant financial assistance;
- conducting scheduled follow-ups with program clients to ask how they are doing, find out if they need additional help, and to help them stay engaged to achieve their plans by established deadlines;
- performing duties that support the Certified CDFI's activities, including but not limited to, coordinating client meetings, preparing presentations, conducting research, reviewing training and outreach materials, reviewing applications for programs and services, and developing material that supports the Certified CDFI's financial counseling and outreach activity; and
- reporting to the Certified CDFI on a regular basis on activities undertaken by the service member.

Desired Skills

Economic Mobility Corps members should possess:

- a desire and ability to work with a diverse group of people, particularly those living in low-income and economically distressed neighborhoods;
- willingness to learn and serve others;
- ability to successfully work independently and in a team environment;
- strong organizational, writing, and oral communication skills, and possess high attention to detail;
- familiarity with community development, financial services, banking and lending terminology, including an understanding of financial planning basics, credit and credit scoring;
- have an interest in finance and/or financial education;
- computer skills, including high-degree of familiarity with Microsoft Excel, or other spreadsheet software; and
- Bachelor's degree preferred, with coursework in finance, accounting, business, or community development.

APPENDIX III: AMERICORPS PUBLIC HEALTH AMERICORPS

About the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC)

The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) works to protect America from health, safety and security threats, both foreign and in the U.S. Whether diseases start at home or abroad, are chronic or acute, curable or preventable, human error or deliberate attack, CDC fights disease and supports communities and citizens to do the same.

CDC increases the health security of our nation. As the nation's health protection agency, CDC saves lives and protects people from health threats. To accomplish its mission, CDC conducts critical science and provides health information that protects our nation against expensive and dangerous health threats and responds when these arise.

The CDC's role includes:

- Detecting and responding to new and emerging health threats
- Tackling the biggest health problems causing death and disability for Americans
- Putting science and advanced technology into action to prevent disease
- Promoting healthy and safe behaviors, communities and environment
- Developing leaders and training the public health workforce, including disease detectives
- Taking the health pulse of our nation

About Public Health AmeriCorps

Public Health AmeriCorps is a \$400 million investment, over five years, from the American Rescue Plan Act to support a partnership between CDC and AmeriCorps. The program is recruiting and building a workforce ready to respond to the public health needs of the nation and provide public health service in their own communities around the country.

The partnership is leveraging the expertise of both agencies, capitalizing on AmeriCorps' experience managing public service and workforce development programs, while benefitting from CDC's technical expertise as the country's leading public health agency.

Public Health AmeriCorps members are working across the country, helping to improve the health of communities. The program is opening the door of working in public health to a new generation, bringing new talent to conduct public health activities firsthand.

The program also supports <u>President Biden's Executive Order (13996) on Establishing the COVID-19 Pandemic Testing Board and Ensuring a Sustainable Public Health Workforce for COVID-19 and Other Biological Threats – specifically Section 4. Establishing a Public Health Workforce Program, in which AmeriCorps was named.</u>

While many of today's needs are related to the COVID-19 response, the program will also help communities address broader the public health needs of vulnerable communities that have been exposed and exacerbated by the pandemic. The program will build on expertise, best practices, and lessons learned from existing CDC, AmeriCorps, and other public health programs.

Who is Eligible for a Public Health AmeriCorps Award

Organizations that meet the AmeriCorps State and National eligibility criteria. Please see <u>C.1. Eligible Applicants</u> section in the Notice.

AmeriCorps Member Position Description

Public Health AmeriCorps members will help state, tribal, territory, county, and local public health agencies and nonprofit organizations meet the public health needs of communities, especially those that have been hard hit by COVID-19. AmeriCorps members cannot displace existing employees or volunteers.

Examples of roles that AmeriCorps member activities include:

- Community outreach
- Health education
- o Mental health education and awareness, emotional regulation skill building
- Health and social services navigation
- o Crisis response (e.g. COVID, Opioids, suicide, mental health)
- Capacity building

Desired Skills

Public Health AmeriCorps members should possess:

- a desire and ability to work with a diverse group of people, particularly those living in low-income and economically distressed neighborhoods;
- a willingness to learn and serve others;
- an ability to work independently and in a team environment successfully; and
- strong organizational, writing, and oral communication skills, and high attention to detail.

APPENDIX IV: AMERICORPS PUBLIC HEALTH AMERICORPS

All applicants seeking AmeriCorps funding outside of Public Health AmeriCorps should refer to the <u>2023-24 ASN</u> Performance Measure Instructions.

Each applicant is required to select at least one aligned performance measure (output paired with outcome) that corresponds to the proposed primary service activity. Each applicant must choose from the following National Performance Measures:

Focus Area	Objective	Selection Rules		Interventions
		Outputs	Outcomes	
Healthy	Access to	H4A: Number of	H17: Number of individuals with	Outreach
Futures	Care	individuals served	increased health knowledge	Education/Training Referrals
			H18: Number of individuals	Medical Services
			reporting a change in behavior or	Counseling/Coaching
			intent to change behavior to	Opioid/Drug
			improve their health	Intervention/Harm
				Reduction
			H19: Number of individuals with	Navigation of Services
			improved health	COVID Response/COVID
				Recovery
			H20: Number of individuals with	
			improved access to medical care	
Capacity	Capacity	G3-3.4: Number	G3-3.10A: Number of	Disaster Preparation
Building	Building &	of organizations	organizations that increase their	Disaster Response
	Leverage	that received	efficiency, effectiveness, and/or	Disaster Recovery
		capacity building services	program reach*	Disaster Mitigation
			* Each applicant must describe in	
			detail how it will measure the	
			organizational effectiveness,	
			efficiency, or program scale/reach	
			in meeting the public health needs	
			of the community in the Described	
			Instrument section.	

Each grantee will also be required to track and report the Performance Data Elements in its annual Grantee Progress Report. The three Performance Data Elements are the number of AmeriCorps members:

- recruited from the geographic or demographic communities the program operates,
- with increased knowledge about public health, and
- who remain in the public health field post-service.

ATTACHMENT A: PERFORMANCE MEASURES INSTRUCTIONS

See 2023-24 ASN Performance Measure Instructions for performance measure requirements and rules.

eGrants Performance Measures Module Instructions

About the Performance Measures Module

In the performance measures module, you will:

- Provide information about your program's connection to AmeriCorps focus areas and objectives.
- Show MSY and member allocations.
- Create the required performance measure(s) as specified in the Performance Measure Instructions
- Set targets and describe data collection instruments and strategies for your performance measures.

Home Page

To start the module, click the "Begin" button on the Home Page.

As you proceed through the module, the Home Page will summarize your work and provide links to edit the parts of the module you have completed. You may also navigate sections of the module using the tab feature at the top of each page. Do not use the back and forward buttons on your internet browser.

Once you have started the module, click "Continue Working" to return to the tab you were on when you last closed the module.

To edit the interventions, objectives, MSY, and member allocations for your application, click the "Edit Objectives/MSYs/Members" button.

After you have created at least one performance measure, the Home Page will display a chart summarizing your measures. To edit a performance measure, click the "Edit" button. To delete a measure, click "Delete." To create a new performance measure, click the "Add New Performance Measure" button.

Objectives Tab

On the Objectives tab, applicants will account for the full range of their program activity. Applicants are not expected to create performance measures for every focus area, objective, or intervention they select on this tab.

An expandable list of AmeriCorps focus areas appears on this tab. When you click on a focus area, a list of objectives appears. A list of common interventions appears under each objective.

First click on a focus area. Then click on an objective. Only the performance measures that correspond to the objectives you select on this tab will be available for selection as you continue through this module. To see which performance measures correspond to which objective, refer to the Performance Measure Instructions.

Next, select all interventions that are part of your program design. Interventions are the activities that members and/or volunteers will carry out to address the problem(s) identified in the application. Select "other" if one of your program's interventions does not appear on the list. Repeat these actions for each of your program's focus areas. Select "other" for your focus area and/or objective if your program activities do not fall within one of the AmeriCorps focus areas or objectives.

Choose your program's primary focus area from the drop-down list. Only the focus areas that correspond to the objectives you selected above appear in the list. Next, select the primary intervention within your primary focus

area. You will be required to create an aligned performance measure (output paired with outcome) that contains your primary intervention. Note that your primary intervention and the performance measure associated with your primary intervention must be focused on the community impact of the program, not on AmeriCorps member development.

You may select a secondary focus area and a secondary intervention. The primary and secondary focus areas may be the same if you have more than one intervention within the focus areas.

MSYs/Members Tab

On this tab, you will enter information about the allocation of MSYs and members across the focus areas and objectives you have selected. You must allocate 100% of your program's MSYs to focus areas and objectives. When you create your performance measures, you will be asked to allocate MSYs to each performance measure; however, you will not be required to assign 100% of your total MSYs to performance measures.

Begin by entering the total MSYs for your program. This must match the total MSYs in your budget. Please double-check your budget to make sure that the total MSY values match.

Next, enter the number of MSYs your program will allocate to each objective. Only the objectives that were selected on the previous tab appear in the MSY chart. If some of your program's objectives are not represented in the chart, return to the previous tab and select additional objectives. The MSY chart must show how all your program's resources are allocated. If the only activity in an objective that you have selected is focused on AmeriCorps member development rather than beneficiary impact, enter 0 MSYs for that objective.

As you enter MSYs into the MSY column of the chart, the corresponding percentage of MSYs will calculate automatically. When you have finished entering your MSYs, the total percentage of MSYs in the chart must be 100%. The total number of MSYs in the chart must equal the number of MSYs in your budget.

In the members column, enter the number of members you will assign to each objective. Some members may perform services across more than one objective. If this is the case, allocate these members to all applicable objectives. For example, if one member performs service in both school readiness and K-12 success, allocate one member to each of these objectives. It is acceptable for the total number of members in this table to exceed total slots requested in the application due to counting members' service across multiple objectives. If the only activity in an objective that you have selected is focused on AmeriCorps member development rather than beneficiary impact, enter 0 members for that objective.

To ensure that information is entered accurately, please refer to additional instructions in Appendix A of the Performance Measure Instructions on calculating and entering MSY and member allocations.

Performance Measure Tab

This tab allows you to create performance measures for all the grant activities you intend to measure.

Begin by creating the aligned performance measure for your primary intervention. After creating your required performance measure, you will be able to create additional performance measures if desired.

To create a performance measure, begin by selecting an objective. The list of objectives includes those you selected on the Objectives tab. Note that programs may not create performance measures for the Find Opportunity, Teacher Corps, Green Jobs, or Access & Attract objectives since these are member-focused objectives. Member-focused outputs and outcomes related to these objectives may be reported as Performance Data Elements on grantee progress reports.

Provide a short, descriptive title for your performance measure.

Briefly describe the problem your program will address in this performance measure.

Select the intervention(s) to be delivered by members and/or member-supported volunteers. The list of interventions includes the ones you selected previously for this objective. Select only the interventions that will lead to the outputs (plus outcomes, if applicable) of the performance measure and that are applicable to all beneficiaries counted under the measure. If you selected "other" as an intervention and wish to include an applicant-determined intervention in your aligned performance measure, click "add user intervention" and enter a one or two word description of the intervention. Do not add an applicant-determined intervention that duplicates an intervention already available in the system.

Select output(s) for your performance measure. The output list includes only the National Performance Measure outputs that correspond to the objectives you have selected. If you do not wish to select National Performance Measures and if the objective you have selected permits applicant-determined outputs, you may create an applicant-determined output by clicking in the checkbox next to the empty output text box and entering the text of your output indicator. You may create additional applicant-determined outputs for the performance measure by clicking "Add User Output." (Note: you are not permitted to create an applicant-determined output that duplicates a National Performance Measure output. If you do not see the National Performance Measure output that you wish to use, check the Selection Rules in the Performance Measure Instructions to make sure you selected the correct objective associated with that National Performance Measure output.)

Select outcome(s). If you have selected a National Performance Measures output that has corresponding National Performance Measures outcome(s), these outcomes will be available to select. If you do not wish to select a National Performance Measure outcome, you may create an applicant-determined outcome by clicking in the checkbox next to the empty outcome text box and entering the text of your outcome indicator. If you do not wish to select any outcome for your National Performance Measure output, click in the checkbox next to the empty outcome text box and enter "NA" in the outcome indicator text box.

If you have not selected a National Performance Measure output or if there is no corresponding National Performance Measure outcome, create an applicant-determined outcome by clicking "Add User Outcome." All applicant-determined outputs must be paired with an applicant-determined outcome.

Enter the number of MSYs and members your program will allocate to achieving the outcomes and/or outputs you have selected in this performance measure. Since programs are not required to measure all grant activities, the number you enter does not have to correspond to the MSY chart you created on the MSY/Members tab; however, the total number of MSYs across all performance measures within a single objective cannot exceed the total number of MSYs previously allocated to that objective. Members may be double-counted across performance measures, but MSYs may not.

Click "next" to proceed to the data collection tab. Later you can return to this tab to create additional performance measures.

Data Collection Tab

On this tab, you will provide additional information about your interventions, instruments, and plan for data collection.

Describe the design and dosage (frequency, intensity, duration) of the interventions you have selected. Frequency refers to how often an intervention occurs (for example, number of sessions per week), intensity refers to the length of time devoted to the intervention (for example, number of minutes per session), and

duration refers to the period of time over which the intervention occurs (for example, how many total weeks of sessions).

Expand each output and outcome and enter data collection information.

Select the data collection method you will use to measure the output or outcome. To select more than one method, click the "Add new method" button. To de-select a method, click the first (blank) line in the method drop-down.

Describe the specific instrument(s) you will use to measure the output or outcome. Include the title of the instrument(s), a brief description of what it measures and how you will administer the instrument, and details about its reliability and validity if applicable. For outcomes, specify how much improvement in knowledge, attitude, behavior or condition is required to be counted as having improved and clearly explain how the instrument measures this.

Enter the target number for your output or outcome. Targets must be numbers, not percentages.

For applicant-determined outputs and outcomes, enter the unit of measure for your target. The unit of measure should describe the beneficiary population you intend to count (children, miles, etc.). Do not enter percentages or member service hours as units of measure. In most cases, the unit of measure should be the same for the outputs and outcomes in an aligned performance measure.

For output-only performance measures, eGrants will require text in the outcome data collection fields. If you do not wish to have an outcome for your National Performance Measure output, enter the following:

Method: Select "other"

• Instrument Description: Enter "NA"

• Target: Enter "1"

Unit of Measure: Enter "NA"

After entering data collection information for all outputs and outcomes, click "Mark Complete." You will return to the Performance Measure tab. If you wish to create another performance measure, repeat the process. If you would like to continue to the next step of the module, click "Next."

Summary Tab

The Summary tab shows all of the information you have entered in the module.

To print a summary of all performance measures, click "Print PDF for all Performance Measures."

To print one performance measure, expand the measure and click "Print This Measure."

Click "Edit Performance Measure" to return to the Performance Measure tab.

Click "Edit Data Collection" to return to the Data Collection tab.

Click "Validate Performance Measures" to validate this module prior to submitting your application. You should also use the Performance Measures Checklist in Appendix B of the Performance Measure Instructions to self-assess your measure(s) prior to submission.

ATTACHMENT B: DETAILED BUDGET INSTRUCTIONS FOR COST REIMBURSEMENT GRANTS

Section I. Program Operating Costs

Complete Section I, Program Operating Costs, of the Budget Worksheet by entering the "Total Amount column in the budget," "CNCS Share column in the budget," and "Grantee Share column in the budget" for Parts A–I, for year one of the grant, as follows below. CNCS = AmeriCorps

A. Personnel Expenses

Under "Position/Title Description," list each staff position separately and provide salary and percentage of effort as percentage of FTE devoted to this award. Each staff person's role listed in the budget must be described in the application narrative and each staff person mentioned in the narrative must be listed in the budget as either CNCS or Grantee share. Because the purpose of this grant is to enable and stimulate volunteer community service, do not include the value of direct community service performed by volunteers. However, you may include the value of volunteer services contributed to the organization for organizational functions such as accounting, audit work, or training of staff and AmeriCorps members.

Michigan-specific requirement: All programs are required to have at least one full-time staff person dedicated solely to the operation of the program. Any exception to this rule must be approved by MCSC.

B. Personnel Fringe Benefits

Under "Purpose/Description," identify the types of fringe benefits you will cover and the costs of benefit(s) for each staff position. Allowable fringe benefits typically include Federal Insurance Contribution Act (FICA), Worker's Compensation, Retirement, State Unemployment Taxt Act (SUTA), Health and Life Insurance, Individual Retirement Account (IRA), and 401K. You may provide a calculation for total benefits as a percentage of the salaries to which they apply or list each benefit as a separate item. If a fringe benefit amount is over 30%, please list covered items separately and justify the high cost. Holidays, leave, and other similar vacation benefits are not included in the fringe benefit rates but are absorbed into the personnel expenses (salary) budget line item.

Michigan-specific requirements: Each benefit must be a calculation format. FICA must be labeled as FICA @ .0765% in the calculation.

C. 1. Staff Travel

Describe the purpose for which program staff will travel. Provide a calculation that includes itemized costs for airfare, transportation, lodging, per diem, and other travel-related expenses multiplied by the number of trips/staff. Where applicable, identify the current standard reimbursement rate(s) of the organization for mileage, daily per diem, and similar supporting information. Reimbursement should not exceed the <u>federal mileage rate</u> (https://www.gsa.gov/travel/plan-book/transportation-airfare-pov-etc/privately-owned-vehicle-pov-mileage-reimbursement-rates) unless a result of applicant policy and justified in the budget narrative. Only domestic travel is allowable.

Michigan-specific requirements: Must use State of Michigan travel rates. All travel and mileage rates must not be greater than the most recent State of Michigan travel reimbursement rates, as well as consistent with the organization's travel policy. Food costs must be reasonable and necessary, and each meal must be itemized with the appropriate state rate. If there are 3 or more people at the same meal group state rates apply. Please refer to the most current DTMB schedule of travel rates.

All applicants must include:

1. The costs associated with traveling to two program director meetings in Lansing, and one two-day program director meeting including overnight accommodations.

2. \$2,000 for travel for at least one staff member to attend the CNCS-sponsored technical assistance meetings. The description should be <u>exactly</u> as follows: Out of State Travel to CNCS-Sponsored Meetings: Conference 4 nts, hotel @\$139 avg. gov rate + tax (per Conlin Travel) = \$150/nt. x 4 nts. =\$600; airfare \$450; Food-\$38.25 (B-fast @ \$13.00 + Dinner @ \$25.25) x 5 days = \$191.25; cab fare @\$100RT; mileage to airport RT @ 360 miles x .650 (premium state rate travel) = \$234 conf. reg. fee @\$424.75 = \$2000

C. 2. Member Travel

Describe the purpose for which members will travel. Provide a calculation that includes itemized costs for airfare, transportation, lodging, per diem, and other related expenses for members to travel outside their service location or between sites. Costs associated with local travel, such as bus passes to local sites, mileage reimbursement for use of car, etc., should be included in this budget category. Where applicable, identify the current standard reimbursement rate(s) of the organization for mileage, daily per diem, and similar supporting information.

Michigan-specific requirements: See Staff Travel section for travel rate information. Costs associated with traveling locally, such as bus passes to local sites, mileage reimbursement, etc. may be included in this category.

All applicants must include:

- Costs associated with sending one LeaderCorps representative to attend one statewide meeting in northern Michigan, and specifically state this in the budget narrative. Applicants need only budget mileage and incidentals for LeaderCorps meetings (meals and accommodations for two nights will be provided by the MCSC).
- 2. All necessary travel costs for members to attend a statewide Lansing held Member Celebration and mileage for a regional service project.

D. Equipment

Equipment is defined as tangible, non-expendable personal property having a useful life of more than one year AND an acquisition cost of \$5,000 or more <u>per unit</u> (including accessories, attachments, and modifications). You should enter any items that do not meet this definition in E. Supplies below. Purchases of equipment are limited to 10% of the total CNCS funds requested. If applicable, show the unit cost and number of units you are requesting. Provide a brief justification for the purchase of the equipment under Item/Purpose.

E. Supplies

AmeriCorps members must wear an AmeriCorps logo on a daily basis – preferably clothing with the AmeriCorps logo. The item with the AmeriCorps logo is a required budget expense. Please include the cost of the item with the AmeriCorps logo in your budget or explain how your program will be providing the item to AmeriCorps members without using grant funds. Grantees may add the AmeriCorps logo to their own local program uniform items using federal funds. Please note your program will be using the AmeriCorps logo in the budget description.

Include the amount of funds to purchase consumable supplies and materials, including member service gear and equipment that does not fit the definition above. You must individually list any single item costing \$1,000 or more. Except for safety equipment, grantees may only charge the cost of member service gear to the federal share if it includes the AmeriCorps logo. All safety gear may be charged to the federal share regardless of whether it includes the AmeriCorps logo. All other service gear must be purchased with non-CNCS funds.

Michigan-specific requirements: Programs are required to budget for and purchase all members a basic AmeriCorps uniform package with the AmeriCorps logo and listed as such (such as a t-shirt, sweatshirt, hat, lapel pin, and button with AC logo) at a minimum of \$35.00 and maximum of \$70.00 per member.

F. Contractual and Consultant Services

Include costs for consultants related to the project's operations, except training or evaluation consultants, who will be listed in Sections G. and H., below. Itemize each contract or consultant and provide a brief justification of the need for each. The cost calculation should provide a basis for determining the cost, such as a daily or hourly rate. Note that there is no maximum daily rate.

G. 1. Staff Training

Include the costs associated with training staff on project requirements and training to enhance the skills staff need for effective project implementation, i.e., project or financial management, team building, etc. If using a consultant(s) for training, indicate the estimated daily rate. There is not a maximum daily rate.

Michigan-specific requirements: Training costs should be indicated as registration fees or training consultants. Do not include travel costs for trainings. Indicate daily rates of consultants and number of days, where applicable.

G. 2. Member Training

Include the costs associated with member training to support them in carrying out their service activities. You may also use this section to request funds to support training in Life after AmeriCorps. If using a consultant(s) for training, indicate the estimated daily rate. There is not a maximum daily rate.

Michigan-specific requirements: Training costs should be indicated as registration fees or training consultants. Do not include travel costs for trainings. Indicate daily rates of consultants times number of days, where applicable. Please justify/explain how meals for the members training (e.g., type of training) are essential components of this activity and that content is provided during the meal period.

All applicants must budget \$75 per member slot for trainings and events coordinated by the. This should be its own line item within this section and should be represented as follows (insert the number of members you proposed in your application):

(# members * \$75) = \$### to attend MCSC-coordinated member trainings and events

H. Evaluation

Include costs for project evaluation activities, including additional staff time or subcontracts, use of evaluation consultants, purchase of instrumentation, and other costs specifically for this activity not budgeted in Section A Personnel Expenses. This cost does not include the daily/weekly gathering of data to assess progress toward meeting performance measures but is a larger assessment of the impact your project is having on the community as well as an assessment of the overall systems and project design. Indicate daily rates of consultants, where applicable.

I. Other Program Operating Costs

Allowable costs in this budget category should include when applicable:

Criminal history background checks for all members and for all employees or other individuals who receive a
salary, education award, living allowance, or stipend or similar payment from the grant (federal or nonfederal share). Please include the cost of the NSOPW, state check, and FBI check for criminal history checks
for all covered positions. If you do not budget funds, you must note an explanation in the budget for how
you will cover the costs.

- Office space rental for projects operating without an approved indirect cost rate agreement that covers office space. If you budget space and it is shared with other projects or activities, you must equitably prorate and allocate the costs between the activities or projects.
- Utilities, telephone, internet, postage, copying, and similar expenses that are specifically used for
 AmeriCorps members and AmeriCorps project staff, and are not part of the organization's indirect cost
 allocation pool. If you budget and share such expenses with other projects or activities, you must equitably
 pro-rate and allocate the costs between the activities or projects.
- Recognition costs for members. List each item and provide a justification in the budget narrative. Gifts and/or food in an entertainment/event setting are not allowable costs.

Section II. Member Costs

Member Costs are identified as "Living Allowance" and "Member Support Costs." Your required match can be federal, state, local, or private sector funds.

A. Living Allowance

The narrative should clearly identify the number of members you are supporting by category (i.e., full-time, three-quarter-time, half-time, reduced-half-time, quarter-time, minimum-time) and the amount of living allowance they will receive, allocating appropriate portions between the CNCS Share column in the budget and grantee share column in the budget (match).

The minimum and maximum living allowance amounts are provided in the Notice.

In eGrants, enter the total number of members you are requesting in each category. Enter the average amount of the living allowance for each type of member. In addition, enter the number of members for whom you are not requesting funds for a living allowance but for whom you are requesting education awards.

B. Member Support Costs

Consistent with the laws of the states where your members serve, you must provide members with the benefits described below.

- **FICA.** Unless exempted by the IRS, all projects must pay FICA for any member receiving a living allowance, even when AmeriCorps does not supply the living allowance. If exempted, please note in the narrative. In the first column next to FICA, indicate the number of members who will receive FICA. Calculate the FICA at 7.65% of the total amount of the living allowance.
- Health Care. You must offer or make available health care benefits to full-time members in accordance with AmeriCorps requirements. Except as stated below, you may not pay health care benefits to less-than-full-time members with AmeriCorps funds. You may choose to provide health care benefits to less-than-full-time members from other sources (i.e., non-federal) but you cannot include the cost in the budget. Less-than-full-time members who are serving in a full-time capacity for a sustained period of time (such as a full-time summer project) are eligible for health care benefits. If you budget health insurance for less-than-full-time members serving in a full-time capacity, indicate in the budget narrative. In your budget narrative, indicate the number of members who will receive health care benefits. AmeriCorps will not pay for dependent coverage. If you do not budget health care for all full-time members, please confirm all full-time members will have access to coverage.
- Worker's Compensation. Some states require worker's compensation for AmeriCorps members, including Michigan. Applicants through the MCSC must budget for worker's compensation for all AmeriCorps members.

• **Unemployment Insurance and Other Member Support Costs.** Michigan does not require programs to budget for unemployment costs.

Section III. Administrative/Indirect Costs Definitions

Administrative costs are general or centralized expenses of the overall administration of an organization that receives AmeriCorps funds and do not include particular project costs. These costs may include administrative staff positions. For organizations that have an established indirect cost rate for federal awards, administrative costs mean those costs that are included in the organization's indirect cost rate agreement. Such costs are generally identified with the organization's overall operation and are further described in Office of Management and Budget Uniform Guidance.

Indirect Cost Rates

If grantees have an approved indirect cost rate, such rate will constitute documentation of the grantee's administrative costs including the 5.26% maximum payable by AmeriCorps and the grantee match of administrative costs. If a grantee wants to claim more than 10% match in administrative costs it must have or obtain an approved indirect cost rate. Where appropriate, AmeriCorps will establish an indirect cost rate that may be used for this and other Federal awards.

As per federal guidelines, the Michigan Community Service Commission will set aside a portion of the federal administrative share to use in administering its sub-grantees, equal to 2% of the total budget. This amount must not exceed 40% of the maximum 5.26% federal share and, therefore, the sub-grantee's portion must not exceed 60% of the maximum federal share. The calculations are below.

For organizations that do not have an established indirect cost rate for federal awards, administrative costs include:

- Costs for financial, accounting, auditing, contracting, or general legal services, except in unusual cases whether they are specifically approved in writing by the Corporation as project costs.
- Costs for internal evaluation, including overall organization's management improvement costs (except
 for independent and internal evaluations of the project evaluations that are specifically related to
 creative methods of quality improvement); and
- Costs for general liability insurance that protects the organization(s) responsible for operating a project, other than insurance costs solely attributable to the project.

Administrative costs may also include that portion of salaries and benefits of the program's director and other administrative staff not attributable to the time spent in support of a specific project. The principles that pertain to the allocation and documentation of personnel costs are stated in the OMB circulars that are incorporated in AmeriCorps regulations [45 CFR 2541.220(b)].

Administrative costs **do not** include the following allowable expenses directly related to a project (including their operations and objectives), such as:

- allowable direct charges for members, including living allowances, insurance payments made on behalf of members, training, and travel.
- costs for staff (including salary, benefits, training, and travel) who recruit, train, place, or supervise members or who develop materials used in such activities, if the purpose is for a specific project objective.
- costs for independent evaluations and any internal evaluations of the project that are related specifically to creative methods of quality improvement.
- costs, excluding those already covered in an organization's indirect cost rate, attributable to staff that work in a direct project support, operational, or oversight capacity, including, but not limited to: support

- staff whose functions directly support project activities;
- staff who coordinate and facilitate single or multi-site project activities; and
- staff who review, disseminate, and implement AmeriCorps guidance and policies directly relating to a project; space, facility, and communications costs that primarily support program operations, excluding those costs that are already covered by an organization's indirect costs rate; and other allowable costs, excluding those costs that are already covered by an organization's indirect cost rate, specifically approved by CNCS as directly attributable to a program.

Options for Calculating Administrative/Indirect Costs (choose A, B, OR C)

Applicants choose one of three methods to calculate allowable administrative costs – a CNCS-fixed percentage rate method, a federally approved indirect cost rate method, or a *de minimis* method. Regardless of the option chosen, the CNCS share of administrative costs is limited to 5% of the total CNCS funds **actually expended** under this grant. Do not create additional lines in this category.

While the Application Instructions present three options for budgeting indirect costs, there are only two places to enter those details in eGrants. Applicants who chose to use the Corporation Fixed Percentage will enter the line item details in Section III.A. Applicants who have a Federally Approved Indirect Cost Rate or are using a De Minimis Rate will enter the line item details in Section III.B. Additionally, applicants using a Federally Approved Indirect Cost Rate or a De Minimis Rate must enter the details of their indirect cost rate in eGrants, following these Instructions.

Please note – applicants are not required to budget for administrative/indirect costs. However, the applicant is required to budget for the Commission Fixed Amount, as described below.

A. CNCS-Fixed Percentage Method

Five/Ten Percent Fixed Administrative Costs Option

The CNCS-fixed percentage rate method allows you to charge administrative costs up to a cap without a federally approved indirect cost rate and without documentation supporting the allocation. If you choose the CNCS-fixed percentage rate method (Section IIIA in eGrants), you may charge, for administrative costs, a fixed 5% of the total of the CNCS funds expended. In order to charge this fixed 5%, the grantee match for administrative costs may not exceed 10% of all direct cost expenditures.

However, because the MCSC requires 2.104% of each grantee's CNCS administrative costs to be set aside from the reimbursable grant award, each grantee regardless of grant award type is only allowed to charge up to 3.156% of the total of the Corporations funds expended (a.) and will need to follow the instructions below even if you have a federally approved indirect cost rate. The federally approved indirect cost rate may be budgeted under the Administrative/Indirect Costs (Option B below) not to exceed a reimbursement rate of 3.156%.

- a) To allocate the *CNCS Share* of this amount (called Corporation Fixed Amount on the budget: Multiply the sum of the CNCS shares of Sections I and II by 5.26% (i.e. 0.0526) x .60 (this is the same as 3.156%). This is the maximum amount that you can request as the CNCS share of administrative costs. Enter this amount as the **CNCS Share for Section III** in the line item **Corporation Fixed Amount**.
- b) To allocate the *Grantee Share* of this amount: If applicable, multiply the total (both CNCS and Grantee Shares) for of Sections I and II by 10% (0.10). This is the maximum amount you can enter as the **Grantee Share for Section III** in the line item **Corporation Fixed Amount**.
- c) Enter the sum of the CNCS and Grantee Shares under Total Amount.
- To allocate the CNCS Commission Fixed Amount of administrative costs: Multiply the sum of the CNCS

Shares of Sections I and II by 5.26% (i.e., 0.0526) x .40 (which is the same as 2.104%). This is the amount the program is *required* to list as the Commission's CNCS Share of administrative costs. Enter this amount as the **CNCS Share for Section III** in the line item **Commission Fixed Amount**. *Do not list any part of this amount under Grantee Share*.

Budget Narrative Example:

CNCS Corporation Fixed Amount:

([Section I CNCS Share] + [Section II CNCS Share] x 0.0526) x (0.60) = Grantee Share

Grantee Corporation Fixed Amount:

(CNCS [Section I] + [Section II] + Grantee Share [Section I] + [Section II] x 0.10) = Total Grantee Share

Commission Fixed Amount (REQUIRED):

([Section I CNCS Share] + [Section II CNCS Share] x .0526) x (.40) = CNCS Share

B. Federally Approved Indirect Cost Rate

If you have a federally approved indirect cost rate, this method must be used, and the rate will constitute documentation of your administrative costs, not to exceed the 5% maximum federal share payable by AmeriCorps. Specify the Cost Type for which your organization has current documentation on file, i.e., Provisional, Predetermined, Fixed, or Final indirect cost (IDC) rate. Supply your approved IDC rate (percentage) and the base upon which this rate is calculated (direct salaries, salaries and fringe benefits, etc.). AmeriCorps does not restrict the overall indirect cost rate claimed. It is at your discretion whether or not to claim your entire IDC rate to calculate administrative costs. If you choose to claim a lower rate, please include this rate in the Rate Claimed field.

- 1. Determine the base amount of direct costs to which you will apply the IDC rate, including both the CNCS and Grantee shares, as prescribed by your established rate agreement (i.e., based on salaries and benefits, total direct costs, or other). Then multiply the appropriate direct costs by the rate being claimed. This will determine the total amount of indirect costs allowable under the grant.
- 2. To determine the CNCS Share: Multiply the sum of the CNCS Share in Sections I and II by 0.0526. This is the maximum amount you can claim as the CNCS share of indirect costs. Please note the 2% Commission Share amount in the text. There is no separate line item to show this calculation.
- 3. To determine the Grantee Share: Subtract the amount calculated in step 2 (the CNCS Share) from the amount calculated in step 1 (the Indirect Cost total). This is the amount the applicant can claim as Grantee Share for administrative costs.

C. De Minimis Rate of 10% of Modified Total Direct Costs

Organizations who do not currently have a federally negotiated indirect cost rate (except for those non-federal entities described in Appendix VII to Part 200—States and Local Government and Indian Tribe Indirect Cost Proposals, paragraph (d)(1)(B)) and who receive less than \$35 million in direct federal funding may indefinitely use a *de minimus* rate of 10% of modified total direct costs (MTDC). Additional information regarding what is included in MTDC and use of this option can be found at 2 CFR 200.414(f) and 200.68. If you elect to use this option, you must use it consistently across all federal awards.

Source of Funds

In the "Source of Funds" field that appears at the end of Budget Section III, enter a brief description of the match in the budget.

- Identify each match source separately.
- Indicated in the description whether each match source is secured or proposed.

- Include a dollar amount for each match source.
- Classify each match source as cash or in-kind.
- Select a source type for each match source: Private, State/Local, or Federal.
- Define all acronyms the first time they are used.

The total amount in the Source of Funds field MUST match the total Grantee Share amount in the budget narrative exactly.

Match Replacement

If you are requesting match replacement funding in response to funding opportunity that includes this as an option, do not include the funds in the budget. The total CNCS Share of funds requested will not include match replacement. If requesting match replacement funding, enter the total amount in the Source of Funds section and identify the type of funds as federal and secured.

Segal Education Awards & Childcare Reimbursement

The value of the Segal Education Awards that members earn for their service is not identified in the budget. Also, the childcare reimbursements provided to eligible members are not included in the budget.

BEFORE YOU SUBMIT

Ensure the following:

- Check the budget against the <u>Budget Checklist</u>
- Review your budget against these guidelines
- Ensure all budget narrative descriptions are thorough and include a calculation
- Double check all calculations for accuracy
- Ensure the Cost per MSY does not exceed that stated in the Maximum Cost per MSY Table of the NOFO to which you are responding
- Ensure the Grantee Share percentage meets the required amount depending on the year of funding for which you are applying (N/A for PHA applicants):

AmeriCorps Funding Year	1, 2, 3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10+
Grantee Share Requirements	24%	26%	30%	34%	38%	42%	46%	50%

ATTACHMENT C: BUDGET WORKSHEET

Section I. Program Operating Costs

A. PEISUIIIEI LADEIISE	A.	Personnel	Expenses
------------------------	----	------------------	-----------------

Position/Title/Description	Qty	Annual Salary	% Time	Total Amount	CNCS Share	Grantee Share
Totals						

B. Personnel Fringe Benefits

Purpose/Description	Calculation	Total Amount	CNCS Share	Grantee Share

C.1. Staff Travel

Purpose	Calculation	Total Amount	CNCS Share	Grantee Share

C. 2. Member Travel

Purpose	Calculation	Total Amount	CNCS Share	Grantee Share

D. Equipment

Item/ Purpose/ Justification	Qty	Unit Cost	Total Amount	CNCS Share	Grantee Share
Totals					

E. Supplies

Purpose	Calculation	Total Amount	CNCS Share	Grantee Share

F. Contractual and	d Consultant Services	Daily	Total		
Purpose	Calculation	Daily Rate	Amount	CNCS Share	Grantee Shar
	•	Totals			
G.1. Staff Training					
Purpose	Calculation	Daily Rate	Total Amount	CNCS Share	Grantee Shai
		Totals			
G.2. Member Traini	ng				
Purpose	Calculation	Daily Rate	Total Amount	CNCS Share	Grantee Sha
		Totals			
H. Evaluation					
Purpose	Calculation	Daily Rate	Total Amount	CNCS Share	Grantee Shar
		Totals			
Other Diseases	On austine Coats			<u> </u>	<u> </u>
Other Program Purpose	Operating Costs Calculation	Daily Rate	Total Amount	CNCS Share	Grantee Shar
	•	Totals			
				_	"
Subtotal Section I:			Total Amount	CNCS Share	Grantee Sha

Section II. Member Costs

A. Living Allowance

Item	# Mbrs	Allowance Rate	# w/o Allowance	Total Amount	CNCS Share	Grantee Share
Full-time (1700 hrs)						
Three quarter-time (1200 hrs)						
Half-time (900 hrs)						
Reduced Half-time (675 hrs)						
Quarter-time (450 hrs)						
Minimum-time (300 hrs)						
Abbreviated-time (100 hrs)						

B. Member Support Costs

Purpose	Calculation	Daily Rate	Total Amount	CNCS Share	Grantee Share
Totals					

Subtotal Section II:	Total Amount	CNCS Share	Grantee Share
Subtotal Sections I + II:			

Section III. Administrative/Indirect Costs

A. Corporation Fixed Percentage

Purpose	Calculation	Total Amount	CNCS Share	Grantee Share
	Totals			

B. Federally Approved Indirect Cost Rate Or *De Minimis* Rate of 10% of Modified Total Direct Costs

Cost Type	Cost Basis	Calculation	l Rate	Rate Claimed	Total Amount	CNCS Share	Grantee Share

Total Sections I + II + III:	Total Amount	CNCS Share	Grantee Share

Budget Total: Validate this budget	Total Amount	CNCS Share	Grantee Share
Required Match Percentages:			

Source of Funds

Match Description (Note whether Secured or Proposed)	Amount	Match Classification (Cash or In Kind)	Match Source (Federal, State/Local, Private)

ATTACHMENT D: DETAILED BUDGET INSTRUCTIONS FOR FIXED AMOUNT GRANTS

These instructions apply only to applicants for Fixed Amount grants including education award programs (EAPs).

EAP and Fixed Amount grant applicants may only request a fixed amount of funding per MSY. Therefore, Fixed Amount applicants are not required to complete a detailed budget or complete the grantee share column. However, you must complete the source of match chart to identify the sources of the additional revenue you need to operate the program. If you are applying for a full-cost fixed amount grant, you must pay at least the minimum living allowance listed in the *Notice* for each type of position you are proposing.

Budget Section II. AmeriCorps Member Positions Member Positions

Identify the number of members you are requesting by category (i.e. full-time, three quarter-time, half-time, reduced half-time, quarter-time, minimum-time) and list under the column labeled #Mbrs w/o Allow (without AmeriCorps-funded living allowance.) In the Allowance Rate field, enter the average amount of the living allowance for each type of member. Enter zero in the column labeled #Mbrs w/ Allow. Leave all other columns blank. See example below (applies to a Full-Cost Fixed Amount grant):

Member Positions						
Item	# Mbrs w/ Allow			Total Amount	000	Grantee Share
Full Time (1700 hrs)	0	\$16,502	5	\$0	\$0	\$0
Three Quarter Time (1200 hours)	0	\$14,000	7	\$0	\$0	\$0

The total number of member service years (MSY) will **automatically calculate** at the bottom of the Member Positions chart. The MSY are calculated as follows:

Member Positions	Calculation	MSY
Full-time (1700 hours)	(members x 1.000)	=
Three quarter-time (1200 hours)	(members x 0.70000000)	=
Half-time (900 hours)	(members x 0.500)	=
Reduced half-time (675 hours)	(members x 0.3809524)	=
Quarter-time (450 hours)	(members x 0.26455027)	=
Minimum-time (300 hours)	(members x 0.21164022)	=
Abbreviated-time (100 hours)	(members x 0.05627705)	=
	Total MSY	

R Fixed Award					
	ı	word	Λ,	ivad	D

Display v	vour ca	Iculation	in the	following	format:
DISDIAV 1	your ca	icuiation	111 1110	IUIIUWIIIE	ioiiiiat.

Total # of MSYs	x MSY amount (See <i>Notice</i> for amounts)	= Total Grant Request \$

Type the total amount requested in the "Total Amount" and "CNCS Share" columns. Leave the "Grantee Share" blank. See example below (applies to a Full-Cost Fixed Amount grant):

Purpose	Calculation	Total Amount	CNCS Share	Grantee Share	
Program Grant Request	47.5 MSY X \$9,500/MSY	\$451,250	\$451,250	\$0	
Subtotal		\$451,250	\$451,250	\$0	

Source of Funds

Match Description	Description

ATTACHMENT E: BUDGET WORKSHEET FOR FIXED AMOUNT GRANTS

Complete the fields for the # w/o Allowance and Allowance Rate only.

Member Positions

Item	# Mbrs	Allowance Rate	# w/o Allow	Total Amount	CNCS Share	Grantee Share		
Full-time (1700 hrs)								
Three quarter-time (1200 hrs)								
Half-time (900 hrs)								
Reduced Half-time (675 hrs)								
Quarter-time (450 hrs)								
Minimum-time (300 hrs)								
Abbreviated-time (100 hrs)								
Subtotal							MSY	Cost, MSY

Purpose	Calculation	Total Amount	CNCS Share	Grantee Share
Program Grant Request				
Subtotal				

Source of Funds

Match	Description

ATTACHMENT F: BUDGET CHECKLIST

Below is a checklist to help you make certain that you submit an accurate budget narrative that meets AmeriCorps requirements. **Note:** This checklist does <u>not</u> apply to Fixed Amount grants.

Yes No	In Compliance?	Section I. Program Operating Costs
members as well as manage the project. Staff indirectly involved in the management or operation of the applicant organization are funded through the administrative cost section (Section III) of the budget. Examples of administrative costs include central management and support functions. Staff fundraising expenses are not charged to the grant. You may not charge AmeriCorps staff members' time and related expenses for fundraising to the federal or grantee share of the grant. Expenses incurred to raise funds must be paid out of the funds raised. Development officers and fundraising staff are not allowable expenses. Budget includes at least one full-time staff person dedicated solely to the operation of the program. The types of fringe benefits to be covered and the costs of benefit(s) for each staff position are described. Allowable fringe benefits typically include FICA, Worker's Compensation, Retirement, SUTA, Health and Life Insurance, IRA, and 401K. You may provide a calculation for total benefits as a percentage of the salaries to which they apply or list each benefit as a separate item. If the fringe amount is over 30%, the benefits are listed separately. Yes \ No Beach benefit is included in calculation benefits are not included in the fringe benefit rates but are absorbed into the personnel expenses (salary) budget line item. Yes \ No Each benefit is included in calculation format. FICA is labeled individually and includes.0765% in the calculation. Yes \ No The purpose for all staff and member travel is clearly identified. You have budgeted \$2,000 for CNCS-sponsored travel under Staff Travel. You have budgeted funds to travel to two program director meetings in Lansing and one two-day program director meeting including overnight accommodations. You have budgeted funds for one LeaderCorps representative to attend one statewide meeting in northern Michigan, and specifically state this in the budget narrative. Applicants need only budget mileage for a regional service project. Mileage r		Costs charged under the Personnel line item directly relate to the operation of the
Staff indirectly involved in the management or operation of the applicant organization are funded through the administrative cost section (Section III) of the budget. Examples of administrative cost section (Section III) of the budget. Examples of administrative cost section (Section III) of the budget. Examples of administrative cost section (Section III) of the budget. Examples of administrative cost section (Section III) of the budget. Examples of administrative cost sinclude central management and support functions. Staff fundraising expenses are not charged to the grant. You may not charge AmeriCorps staff members' time and related expenses for fundraising to the federal or grantee share of the grant. Expenses incurred to raise funds must be paid out of the funds raised. Development officers and fundraising staff are not allowable expenses. Budget includes at least one full-time staff person dedicated solely to the operation of the program. The types of fringe benefits to be covered and the costs of benefit(s) for each staff position are described. Allowable fringe benefits typically include FICA, Worker's Compensation, Retirement, SUTA, Health and Life Insurance, IRA, and 401K. You may provide a calculation for total benefits as a percentage of the salaries to which they apply or list each benefit as a separate item. If the fringe amount is over 30%, the benefits are listed separately. Holidays, leave, and other similar vacation benefits are not included in the fringe benefit rates but are absorbed into the personnel expenses (salary) budget line Item. Each benefit is included in calculation format. FICA is labeled individually and includes. 0765% in the calculation. Yes No The purpose for all staff and member travel is clearly identified. You have budgeted \$2,000 for CNCS-sponsored travel under Staff Travel. You have budgeted funds to travel to two program director meetings in Lansing and one two-day program director meeting including overnight accommodations. You have budgeted funds for one L	☐ Yes ☐ No	AmeriCorps project. Examples include costs for staff who recruit, train, place, or supervise
Yes No		members as well as manage the project.
administrative costs include central management and support functions. Staff fundraising expenses are not charged to the grant. You may not charge AmeriCorps staff members' time and related expenses for fundraising to the federal or grantee share of the grant. Expenses incurred to raise funds must be paid out of the funds raised. Development officers and fundraising staff are not allowable expenses. Budget includes at least one full-time staff person dedicated solely to the operation of the program. The types of fringe benefits to be covered and the costs of benefit(s) for each staff position are described. Allowable fringe benefits typically include FICA, Worker's Compensation, Retirement, SUTA, Health and Life Insurance, IRA, and Alk. You may provide a calculation for total benefits as a percentage of the salaries to which they apply or list each benefit as a separate item. If the fringe amount is over 30%, the benefits are listed separately. Yes No Each benefit is included in calculation format. Yes No FICA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. Yes No The purpose for all staff and member travel is clearly identified. Yes No You have budgeted \$2,000 for CNCS-sponsored travel under Staff Travel. You have budgeted funds to travel to two program director meetings in Lansing and one two-day program director meeting including overnight accommodations. You have budgeted funds for one LeaderCorps representative to attend one statewide meeting in northern Michigan, and specifically state this in the budget narrative. Applicants need only budget mileage and incidentals for LeaderCorps meetings. You have budgeted all necessary travel costs for members to attend a statewide Lansing held Member Celebration and mileage for a regional service project. Funds for the purchase of equipment (does not include general use office equipment) are limited to 10% of the total grant amount. All single equipment items over \$5000 per unit are specifically listed.		Staff indirectly involved in the management or operation of the applicant organization are
Staff fundraising expenses are not charged to the grant. You may not charge AmeriCorps staff members' time and related expenses for fundraising to the federal or grantee share of the grant. Expenses incurred to raise funds must be paid out of the funds raised. Development officers and fundraising staff are not allowable expenses. Yes No Budget includes at least one full-time staff person dedicated solely to the operation of the program. The types of fringe benefits to be covered and the costs of benefit(s) for each staff position are described. Allowable fringe benefits typically include FICA, Worker's Compensation, Retirement, SUTA, Health and Life Insurance, IRA, and 401K. You may provide a calculation for total benefits as a percentage of the salaries to which they apply or list each benefit as a separate item. If the fringe amount is over 30%, the benefits are listed separately. Yes No Holidays, leave, and other similar vacation benefits are not included in the fringe benefit rates but are absorbed into the personnel expenses (salary) budget line item. Yes No FICA is labeled individually and includes.0765% in the calculation. Yes No The purpose for all staff and member travel is clearly identified. Yes No You have budgeted \$2,000 for CNCS-sponsored travel under Staff Travel. You have budgeted funds to travel to two program director meetings in Lansing and one two-day program director meeting including overnight accommodations. You have budgeted funds for one LeaderCorps representative to attend one statewide meeting in northern Michigan, and specifically state this in the budget narrative. Applicants need only budget mileage and incidentals for LeaderCorps meetings. You have budgeted funds for one LeaderCorps representative to attend a statewide tall necessary travel costs for members to attend a statewide land held Member Celebration and mileage for a regional service project. Yes No Mileage rates do not exceed that in the 2022 State of Michigan DTMB	☐ Yes ☐ No	funded through the administrative cost section (Section III) of the budget. Examples of
staff members' time and related expenses for fundraising to the federal or grantee share of the grant. Expenses incurred to raise funds must be paid out of the funds raised. Development officers and fundraising staff are not allowable expenses. Budget includes at least one full-time staff person dedicated solely to the operation of the program. The types of fringe benefits to be covered and the costs of benefit(s) for each staff position are described. Allowable fringe benefits typically include FICA, Worker's Compensation, Retirement, SUTA, Health and Life Insurance, IRA, and 401K. You may provide a calculation for total benefits as a percentage of the salaries to which they apply or list each benefit as a separate item. If the fringe amount is over 30%, the benefits are listed separately. Yes No		administrative costs include central management and support functions.
of the grant. Expenses incurred to raise funds must be paid out of the funds raised. Development officers and fundraising staff are not allowable expenses. Budget includes at least one full-time staff person dedicated solely to the operation of the program. The types of fringe benefits to be covered and the costs of benefit(s) for each staff position are described. Allowable fringe benefits typically include FICA, Worker's Compensation, Retirement, SUTA, Health and Life Insurance, IRA, and 401K. You may provide a calculation for total benefits as a percentage of the salaries to which they apply or list each benefit as a separate item. If the fringe amount is over 30%, the benefits are listed separately. Yes □ No		Staff fundraising expenses are not charged to the grant. You may not charge AmeriCorps
Of the grant. Expenses incurred to raise funds must be paid out of the funds raised. Development officers and fundraising staff are not allowable expenses. Budget includes at least one full-time staff person dedicated solely to the operation of the program. The types of fringe benefits to be covered and the costs of benefit(s) for each staff position are described. Allowable fringe benefits typically include FICA, Worker's Compensation, Retirement, SUTA, Health and Life Insurance, IRA, and 401K. You may provide a calculation for total benefits as a percentage of the salaries to which they apply or list each benefit as a separate item. If the fringe amount is over 30%, the benefits are listed separately. Yes No	□ Vos □ No	staff members' time and related expenses for fundraising to the federal or grantee share
Yes No	□ res □ NO	of the grant. Expenses incurred to raise funds must be paid out of the funds raised.
The types of fringe benefits to be covered and the costs of benefit(s) for each staff position are described. Allowable fringe benefits typically include FICA, Worker's Compensation, Retirement, SUTA, Health and Life Insurance, IRA, and 401K. You may provide a calculation for total benefits as a percentage of the salaries to which they apply or list each benefit as a separate item. If the fringe amount is over 30%, the benefits are listed separately. Holidays, leave, and other similar vacation benefits are not included in the fringe benefit rates but are absorbed into the personnel expenses (salary) budget line item. Each benefit is included in calculation format. Yes □ No FICA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. Yes □ No The purpose for all staff and member travel is clearly identified. Yes □ No You have budgeted \$2,000 for CNCS-sponsored travel under Staff Travel. You have budgeted funds to travel to two program director meetings in Lansing and one two-day program director meeting including overnight accommodations. You have budgeted funds for one LeaderCorps representative to attend one statewide meeting in northern Michigan, and specifically state this in the budget narrative. Applicants need only budget mileage and incidentals for LeaderCorps meetings. You have budgeted all necessary travel costs for members to attend a statewide Lansing held Member Celebration and mileage for a regional service project. Yes □ No Mileage rates do not exceed that in the 2022 State of Michigan DTMB schedule Funds for the purchase of equipment (does not include general use office equipment) are limited to 10% of the total grant amount. All single equipment items over \$5000 per unit are specifically listed. All single supply items over \$1000 per unit are specifically listed and explained in the		Development officers and fundraising staff are not allowable expenses.
The types of fringe benefits to be covered and the costs of benefit(s) for each staff position are described. Allowable fringe benefits typically include FICA, Worker's Compensation, Retirement, SUTA, Health and Life Insurance, IRA, and 401K. You may provide a calculation for total benefits as a percentage of the salaries to which they apply or list each benefit as a separate item. If the fringe amount is over 30%, the benefits are listed separately. Yes No		Budget includes at least one full-time staff person dedicated solely to the operation of the
position are described. Allowable fringe benefits typically include FICA, Worker's Compensation, Retirement, SUTA, Health and Life Insurance, IRA, and 401K. You may provide a calculation for total benefits as a percentage of the salaries to which they apply or list each benefit as a separate item. If the fringe amount is over 30%, the benefits are listed separately. Holidays, leave, and other similar vacation benefits are not included in the fringe benefit rates but are absorbed into the personnel expenses (salary) budget line item. Sech benefit is included in calculation format. FICA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. The purpose for all staff and member travel is clearly identified. Yes No The purpose for all staff and member travel is clearly identified. Yes No Vou have budgeted \$2,000 for CNCS-sponsored travel under Staff Travel. You have budgeted funds to travel to two program director meetings in Lansing and one two-day program director meeting including overnight accommodations. You have budgeted funds for one LeaderCorps representative to attend one statewide meeting in northern Michigan, and specifically state this in the budget narrative. Applicants need only budget mileage and incidentals for LeaderCorps meetings. You have budgeted all necessary travel costs for members to attend a statewide Lansing held Member Celebration and mileage for a regional service project. Mileage rates do not exceed that in the 2022 State of Michigan DTMB schedule Funds for the purchase of equipment (does not include general use office equipment) are limited to 10% of the total grant amount. All single equipment items over \$5000 per unit are specifically listed. All single equipment items over \$5000 per unit are specifically listed and explained in the	□ res □ no	program.
Compensation, Retirement, SUTA, Health and Life Insurance, IRA, and 401K. You may provide a calculation for total benefits as a percentage of the salaries to which they apply or list each benefit as a separate item. If the fringe amount is over 30%, the benefits are listed separately. Holidays, leave, and other similar vacation benefits are not included in the fringe benefit rates but are absorbed into the personnel expenses (salary) budget line item. Yes No Each benefit is included in calculation format. FICA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. Yes No The purpose for all staff and member travel is clearly identified. You have budgeted \$2,000 for CNCS-sponsored travel under Staff Travel. You have budgeted funds to travel to two program director meetings in Lansing and one two-day program director meeting including overnight accommodations. You have budgeted funds for one LeaderCorps representative to attend one statewide meeting in northern Michigan, and specifically state this in the budget narrative. Applicants need only budget mileage and incidentals for LeaderCorps meetings. You have budgeted all necessary travel costs for members to attend a statewide Lansing held Member Celebration and mileage for a regional service project. Yes No Mileage rates do not exceed that in the 2022 State of Michigan DTMB schedule Funds for the purchase of equipment (does not include general use office equipment) are limited to 10% of the total grant amount. All single equipment items over \$5000 per unit are specifically listed. All single supply items over \$5000 per unit are specifically listed and explained in the		The types of fringe benefits to be covered and the costs of benefit(s) for each staff
provide a calculation for total benefits as a percentage of the salaries to which they apply or list each benefit as a separate item. If the fringe amount is over 30%, the benefits are listed separately. Yes No		position are described. Allowable fringe benefits typically include FICA, Worker's
provide a calculation for total benefits as a percentage of the salaries to which they apply or list each benefit as a separate item. If the fringe amount is over 30%, the benefits are listed separately. Yes No	□ Vos □ No	Compensation, Retirement, SUTA, Health and Life Insurance, IRA, and 401K. You may
listed separately.		provide a calculation for total benefits as a percentage of the salaries to which they apply
Holidays, leave, and other similar vacation benefits are not included in the fringe benefit rates but are absorbed into the personnel expenses (salary) budget line item. Yes No Each benefit is included in calculation format. Yes No FICA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. Yes No The purpose for all staff and member travel is clearly identified. Yes No You have budgeted \$2,000 for CNCS-sponsored travel under Staff Travel. Yes No You have budgeted funds to travel to two program director meetings in Lansing and one two-day program director meeting including overnight accommodations. You have budgeted funds for one LeaderCorps representative to attend one statewide meeting in northern Michigan, and specifically state this in the budget narrative. Applicants need only budget mileage and incidentals for LeaderCorps meetings. Yes No Mileage rates do not exceed that in the 2022 State of Michigan DTMB schedule Yes No Mileage rates do not exceed that in the 2022 State of Michigan DTMB schedule Yes No All single equipment items over \$5000 per unit are specifically listed. Yes No All single supply items over \$1000 per unit are specifically listed and explained in the		or list each benefit as a separate item. If the fringe amount is over 30%, the benefits are
rates but are absorbed into the personnel expenses (salary) budget line item. rates but are absorbed into the personnel expenses (salary) budget line item. rates but are absorbed into the personnel expenses (salary) budget line item. rates but are absorbed into the personnel expenses (salary) budget line item. rates but are absorbed into the personnel expenses (salary) budget line item. rates but are absorbed into the personnel expenses (salary) budget line item. rates but are absorbed into the personnel expenses (salary) budget line item. rates but are absorbed into the personnel expenses (salary) budget intem. FIGA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. rates but are absorbed into the personnel expenses (salary) budget intems. FIGA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. FIGA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. FIGA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. FIGA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. FIGA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. FIGA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. FIGA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. FIGA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. FIGA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. FIGA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. FIGA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. FIGA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. FIGA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. FIGA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. FIGA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. FIGA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. FIGA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. FIGA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. FIGA is labe		·
rates but are absorbed into the personnel expenses (salary) budget line item. Yes No Each benefit is included in calculation format. Yes No FICA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. Yes No The purpose for all staff and member travel is clearly identified. Yes No You have budgeted \$2,000 for CNCS-sponsored travel under Staff Travel. You have budgeted funds to travel to two program director meetings in Lansing and one two-day program director meeting including overnight accommodations. You have budgeted funds for one LeaderCorps representative to attend one statewide meeting in northern Michigan, and specifically state this in the budget narrative. Applicants need only budget mileage and incidentals for LeaderCorps meetings. You have budgeted all necessary travel costs for members to attend a statewide Lansing held Member Celebration and mileage for a regional service project. Yes No Mileage rates do not exceed that in the 2022 State of Michigan DTMB schedule Yes No No Funds for the purchase of equipment (does not include general use office equipment) are limited to 10% of the total grant amount. Yes No Justification/explanation of equipment items is included in the budget narrative. Yes No All single equipment items over \$5000 per unit are specifically listed and explained in the	□ Vos □ No	Holidays, leave, and other similar vacation benefits are not included in the fringe benefit
Yes No FICA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation. Yes No The purpose for all staff and member travel is clearly identified. Yes No You have budgeted \$2,000 for CNCS-sponsored travel under Staff Travel. Yes No You have budgeted funds to travel to two program director meetings in Lansing and one two-day program director meeting including overnight accommodations. Yes No You have budgeted funds for one LeaderCorps representative to attend one statewide meeting in northern Michigan, and specifically state this in the budget narrative. Applicants need only budget mileage and incidentals for LeaderCorps meetings. Yes No You have budgeted all necessary travel costs for members to attend a statewide Lansing held Member Celebration and mileage for a regional service project. Yes No Mileage rates do not exceed that in the 2022 State of Michigan DTMB schedule Yes No Funds for the purchase of equipment (does not include general use office equipment) are limited to 10% of the total grant amount. Yes No All single equipment items over \$5000 per unit are specifically listed. Yes No All single supply items over \$1000 per unit are specifically listed and explained in the		rates but are absorbed into the personnel expenses (salary) budget line item.
☐ Yes No The purpose for all staff and member travel is clearly identified. ☐ Yes No You have budgeted \$2,000 for CNCS-sponsored travel under Staff Travel. ☐ Yes No You have budgeted funds to travel to two program director meetings in Lansing and one two-day program director meeting including overnight accommodations. ☐ Yes No You have budgeted funds for one LeaderCorps representative to attend one statewide meeting in northern Michigan, and specifically state this in the budget narrative. Applicants need only budget mileage and incidentals for LeaderCorps meetings. ☐ Yes No You have budgeted all necessary travel costs for members to attend a statewide Lansing held Member Celebration and mileage for a regional service project. ☐ Yes No Mileage rates do not exceed that in the 2022 State of Michigan DTMB schedule ☐ Yes No Funds for the purchase of equipment (does not include general use office equipment) are limited to 10% of the total grant amount. ☐ Yes No All single equipment items over \$5000 per unit are specifically listed. ☐ Yes No All single supply items over \$1000 per unit are specifically listed and explained in the	☐ Yes ☐ No	Each benefit is included in calculation format.
☐ Yes No You have budgeted \$2,000 for CNCS-sponsored travel under Staff Travel. ☐ Yes No You have budgeted funds to travel to two program director meetings in Lansing and one two-day program director meeting including overnight accommodations. ☐ Yes No You have budgeted funds for one LeaderCorps representative to attend one statewide meeting in northern Michigan, and specifically state this in the budget narrative. Applicants need only budget mileage and incidentals for LeaderCorps meetings. ☐ Yes No You have budgeted all necessary travel costs for members to attend a statewide Lansing held Member Celebration and mileage for a regional service project. ☐ Yes No Mileage rates do not exceed that in the 2022 State of Michigan DTMB schedule ☐ Yes No Funds for the purchase of equipment (does not include general use office equipment) are limited to 10% of the total grant amount. ☐ Yes No All single equipment items over \$5000 per unit are specifically listed. ☐ Yes No All single supply items over \$1000 per unit are specifically listed and explained in the	☐ Yes ☐ No	FICA is labeled individually and includes .0765% in the calculation.
 Yes □ No You have budgeted funds to travel to two program director meetings in Lansing and one two-day program director meeting including overnight accommodations. You have budgeted funds for one LeaderCorps representative to attend one statewide meeting in northern Michigan, and specifically state this in the budget narrative. Applicants need only budget mileage and incidentals for LeaderCorps meetings. Yes □ No You have budgeted all necessary travel costs for members to attend a statewide Lansing held Member Celebration and mileage for a regional service project. □ Yes □ No Mileage rates do not exceed that in the 2022 State of Michigan DTMB schedule □ Yes □ No □ Yes □ No All single equipment items over \$5000 per unit are specifically listed. □ Yes □ No □ All single supply items over \$1000 per unit are specifically listed and explained in the 	☐ Yes ☐ No	The purpose for all staff and member travel is clearly identified.
two-day program director meeting including overnight accommodations. You have budgeted funds for one LeaderCorps representative to attend one statewide meeting in northern Michigan, and specifically state this in the budget narrative. Applicants need only budget mileage and incidentals for LeaderCorps meetings. You have budgeted all necessary travel costs for members to attend a statewide Lansing held Member Celebration and mileage for a regional service project. Yes □ No Mileage rates do not exceed that in the 2022 State of Michigan DTMB schedule Yes □ No Funds for the purchase of equipment (does not include general use office equipment) are limited to 10% of the total grant amount. Yes □ No Justification/explanation of equipment items is included in the budget narrative. All single supply items over \$1000 per unit are specifically listed and explained in the	☐ Yes ☐ No	You have budgeted \$2,000 for CNCS-sponsored travel under Staff Travel.
You have budgeted funds for one LeaderCorps representative to attend one statewide meeting in northern Michigan, and specifically state this in the budget narrative. Applicants need only budget mileage and incidentals for LeaderCorps meetings. You have budgeted all necessary travel costs for members to attend a statewide Lansing held Member Celebration and mileage for a regional service project. Yes □ No Mileage rates do not exceed that in the 2022 State of Michigan DTMB schedule Yes □ No Hos of the purchase of equipment (does not include general use office equipment) are limited to 10% of the total grant amount. Yes □ No Justification/explanation of equipment items is included in the budget narrative. All single supply items over \$1000 per unit are specifically listed and explained in the	□ Voc □ No	You have budgeted funds to travel to two program director meetings in Lansing and one
 Yes □ No meeting in northern Michigan, and specifically state this in the budget narrative. Applicants need only budget mileage and incidentals for LeaderCorps meetings. □ Yes □ No You have budgeted all necessary travel costs for members to attend a statewide Lansing held Member Celebration and mileage for a regional service project. □ Yes □ No Mileage rates do not exceed that in the 2022 State of Michigan DTMB schedule □ Yes □ No Funds for the purchase of equipment (does not include general use office equipment) are limited to 10% of the total grant amount. □ Yes □ No All single equipment items over \$5000 per unit are specifically listed. □ Yes □ No All single supply items over \$1000 per unit are specifically listed and explained in the 	□ res □ NO	two-day program director meeting including overnight accommodations.
Applicants need only budget mileage and incidentals for LeaderCorps meetings. You have budgeted all necessary travel costs for members to attend a statewide Lansing held Member Celebration and mileage for a regional service project. Yes No Mileage rates do not exceed that in the 2022 State of Michigan DTMB schedule Funds for the purchase of equipment (does not include general use office equipment) are limited to 10% of the total grant amount. Yes No All single equipment items over \$5000 per unit are specifically listed. Yes No Justification/explanation of equipment items is included in the budget narrative. All single supply items over \$1000 per unit are specifically listed and explained in the		You have budgeted funds for one LeaderCorps representative to attend one statewide
 Yes □ No You have budgeted all necessary travel costs for members to attend a statewide Lansing held Member Celebration and mileage for a regional service project. □ Yes □ No □ Wes □ No □ Yes □ No	☐ Yes ☐ No	meeting in northern Michigan, and specifically state this in the budget narrative.
Held Member Celebration and mileage for a regional service project. Held Member Celebration and mileage for a regional service project. Mileage rates do not exceed that in the 2022 State of Michigan DTMB schedule Funds for the purchase of equipment (does not include general use office equipment) are limited to 10% of the total grant amount. Held Member Celebration and mileage for a regional service project. Funds for the purchase of equipment (does not include general use office equipment) are limited to 10% of the total grant amount. Held Member Celebration and mileage for a regional service project. Funds for the purchase of equipment (does not include general use office equipment) are limited to 10% of the total grant amount. Held Member Celebration and mileage for a regional service project. Funds for the purchase of equipment (does not include general use office equipment) are limited to 10% of the total grant amount. Held Member Celebration and mileage for a regional service project.		Applicants need only budget mileage and incidentals for LeaderCorps meetings.
Yes No Mileage rates do not exceed that in the 2022 State of Michigan DTMB schedule	☐ Yes ☐ No	You have budgeted all necessary travel costs for members to attend a statewide Lansing
 Yes □ No Funds for the purchase of equipment (does not include general use office equipment) are limited to 10% of the total grant amount. □ Yes □ No □ Yes □ No □ Justification/explanation of equipment items is included in the budget narrative. □ Yes □ No □ All single supply items over \$1000 per unit are specifically listed and explained in the 		held Member Celebration and mileage for a regional service project.
Yes No limited to 10% of the total grant amount. Yes No All single equipment items over \$5000 per unit are specifically listed. Yes No Justification/explanation of equipment items is included in the budget narrative. Yes No All single supply items over \$1000 per unit are specifically listed and explained in the	☐ Yes ☐ No	Mileage rates do not exceed that in the 2022 State of Michigan DTMB schedule
Yes □ No	☐ Yes ☐ No	Funds for the purchase of equipment (does not include general use office equipment) are
☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Justification/explanation of equipment items is included in the budget narrative. ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ All single supply items over \$1000 per unit are specifically listed and explained in the		limited to 10% of the total grant amount.
All single supply items over \$1000 per unit are specifically listed and explained in the	☐ Yes ☐ No	All single equipment items over \$5000 per unit are specifically listed.
VAS NO	☐ Yes ☐ No	Justification/explanation of equipment items is included in the budget narrative.
	☐ Yes ☐ No	

In Compliance?	Section I. Program Operating Costs
☐ Yes ☐ No	Cost of items with the AmeriCorps logo that will be worn daily is included for all AmeriCorps members. Or if not, there is an explanation of how the program will be providing the AmeriCorps logo item to AmeriCorps members using funds other than AmeriCorps grant funds.
☐ Yes ☐ No	You only charged to the federal share of the budget member service gear that includes the AmeriCorps logo and noted that the gear will have the AmeriCorps logo, with the exception of safety equipment.
☐ Yes ☐ No	The cost of member gear is not less than \$35 and not more than \$70 per member.
☐ Yes ☐ No	Training costs for Staff and Members are indicated as registration fees.
☐ Yes ☐ No	You budgeted \$75 per member to attend MCSC-coordinated trainings and events.
☐ Yes ☐ No	Does the budget reflect adequate budgeted costs for project evaluation.
☐ Yes ☐ No	Have you budgeted the cost of the NSOPW, FBI, and state check in the CNCS share for criminal history checks of each member and grant-funded staff that are in covered positions per 45 CFR 2522.205? If not, have you provided an explanation of how the costs will be covered.
☐ Yes ☐ No	Are all items in the budget narrative itemized and the purpose of the funds justified.

In Compliance?	Section II. Member Costs
☐ Yes ☐ No	Are the living allowance amounts correct? Full-time AmeriCorps members must receive at least the minimum living allowance.
☐ Yes ☐ No	Living allowances are not paid on an hourly basis? They may be calculated using service hours and program length to derive a weekly or biweekly distribution amount. Divide the distribution in equal increments that are not based on the specified number of hours served.
☐ Yes ☐ No	Is FICA calculated correctly? You must pay FICA for any member receiving a living allowance. Unless exempted by the IRS, calculate FICA at 7.65% of the total amount of the living allowance. If exempted from paying FICA, is the exemption noted in the budget narrative?
☐ Yes ☐ No	Is the Worker's Compensation calculation correct? Michigan requires worker's compensation for AmeriCorps members.
□ Yes □ No	Health care is provided for full-time AmeriCorps members only (unless part-time serving in a full-time capacity). If your project chooses to provide health care to other part-time members, you may not use federal funds to help pay for any portion of the cost. Projects must provide health care coverage to all full-time members who do not have adequate health care coverage at the time of enrollment or who lose coverage due to participation in the project. In addition, projects must provide coverage if a full-time member loses coverage during the term of service through no deliberate act of his/her own.
☐ Yes ☐ No	Unemployment insurance is only budgeted if state law requires it?

In Compliance?	Section III. Administrative/Indirect Costs	
	Applicant does not have a current federally approved indirect cost rate and has chosen	
☐ Yes ☐ No	to use the CNCS-fixed percentage method and the maximum federal share of	
	administrative costs does not exceed 5% of the total federal funds budgeted. To	

	determine the federal administrative share, multiply all other budgeted federal funds by .0526.
☐ Yes ☐ No	Applicant has chosen to use CNCS fixed percentage method and the maximum grantee share is at 10% or less of total budgeted funds?
☐ Yes ☐ No	Applicant has a current approved indirect cost rate – The maximum grantee share does not exceed the federally approved rate, less the 5% CNCS share?
☐ Yes ☐ No	Applicant has a current approved indirect cost rate-the type of rate, the IDC rate percentage, the rate claimed and the base to which the rate is applied has been specified?
☐ Yes ☐ No	Applicant is directly applying to CNCS and the approved indirect cost rate information has been entered into eGrants to support the costs budgeted?
☐ Yes ☐ No	Applicant does not have a current federally approved indirect cost rate and is choosing to use a <i>de minimis</i> rate of 10% of modified total direct costs?

In Compliance?	Source of Funds (Match)		
☐ Yes ☐ No	Is the overall match being met at the required level based on the year of funding?		
	For all matching funds, proposed vs secured, the source(s) [private, state, local, and/or		
☐ Yes ☐ No	federal], the type of contribution (cash or in-kind), and the amount of match, are clearly		
	identified in the narrative and in the Source of Funds field in eGrants?		
☐ Yes ☐ No	The amount of match is for the entire amount in the budget narrative? (The total amount		
□ Yes □ NO	of match equals the amount in the budget exactly?)		
	Match replacement funding is included only in the Source of Funds section? In addition to		
☐ Yes ☐ No	the amount of match replacement funding, the funds are identified as federal and		
	secured?		

ATTACHMENT G: ALTERNATIVE MATCH SCHEDULE REQUEST INSTRUCTIONS

Grantees are required to meet an overall matching rate that increases over time. You have the flexibility to meet the overall match requirements in any of the three budget areas, as long as you maintain the minimum match of 24% for the first three years and the increasing minimums in years thereafter. See 45 CFR §§ 2521.35–2521.90 for the specific regulations.

Special Circumstances for an Alternative Match Schedule: Under certain circumstances, applicants may qualify to meet alternative matching requirements that increase over the years to 35% instead of 50% as specified in the regulations at §2521.60(b). To qualify, you must demonstrate that your program is either located in a rural county or in a severely economically distressed community as defined below.

A. Rural County: In determining whether a program is rural, AmeriCorps will consider the most recent Beale code rating published by the U.S. Department of Agriculture for the county in which the program is located. Any program located in a county with a Beale code of 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, or 9 is eligible to apply for the alternative match requirement. See Attachment H for the Table of Beale codes.

B. Severely Economically Distressed County: In determining whether a program is located in a severely economically distressed county, AmeriCorps will consider the following list of county-level characteristics. See Attachment H for a list of website addresses where this publicly available information can be found.

- The county-level per capita income is less than or equal to 75% of the national average for all counties using the most recent census data or Bureau of Economic Analysis data;
- The county-level poverty rate is equal to or greater than 125% of the national average for all counties using the most recent census data; and
- The county-level unemployment is above the national average for all counties for the previous 12 months using the most recently available Bureau of Labor Statistics data.
- The areas served by the program lack basic infrastructure such as water or electricity.

C. Program Location: Except when approved otherwise, AmeriCorps will determine the location of your program based on the legal applicant's address. If you believe the legal applicant's address is not the appropriate way to consider the location of your program, you must provide relevant facts about your program location in your request. AmeriCorps will, in its sole discretion, determine whether some other address is more appropriate for determining a program's location.

If your program is located in one of these areas, see the instructions below for applying for this alternative match schedule. You must submit your request to the alternative schedule per the information contained in the *Notice*. AmeriCorps will review your request and notify you within 30 days if you qualify for the alternative schedule and provide instructions for entering your budget into eGrants under the Alternative Match Schedule.

If approved for the alternative schedules, programs will base their budget in the upcoming application on the approved alternative match. The alternative match requirement will be in effect for whatever portion of the three-year project period remains or, if applying as a new grantee, for the upcoming three-year grant cycle.

D. Instructions for the Alternative Match Schedule: Programs operating in one state must send their requests to the State Commission for review and approval. The Commission will then submit the approved request to AmeriCorps for consideration. Information on how to submit a request is on the Manage your grant webpage.

ATTACHMENT H: BEALE CODES AND COUNTY-LEVEL ECONOMIC DATA FOR ALTERNATIVE MATCH REQUESTS

Rural Community

The U.S. Department of Agriculture publishes **Beale codes**, which are used to classify counties as being more urban or more rural. Counties are designated on a scale from one to nine according to the following descriptions:

	2003 Beale Codes				
Code#	Metropolitan	Description			
	Туре				
1	Metropolitan	Counties in metro areas of 1 million population or more			
2	Metropolitan	Counties in metro areas of 250,000 to 1 million			
3	Metropolitan	Counties in metro areas of fewer than 250,000			
4	Non-metro	Urban population of 20,000 or more, adjacent to a metropolitan area			
5	Non-metro	Urban population of 20,000 or more, not adjacent to a metropolitan area			
6	Non-metro	Urban population of 2,500 to 19,999, adjacent to a metropolitan area			
7	Non-metro	Urban population of 2,500 to 19,999, not adjacent to a metropolitan area			
0	8 Non-metro	Completely rural or less than 2,500 urban population, adjacent to a			
O		metropolitan area			
9	Non-metro	Completely rural or less than 2,500 urban population, not adjacent to a			
9	Non-metro	metropolitan area			

Any program located in a county with a Beale code of 4,5, 6, 7, 8, or 9 is eligible to apply for the alternative match.

Severely Economically Distressed Community

The following table provides the website addresses where you can find the publicly available information on county-level economic data including per capita income, poverty rate, and unemployment levels.

WEBSITE ADDRESS	EXPLANATION
http://www.bea.gov/regional/	Bureau of Economic Analysis' Regional Economic Information System (REIS): Provides data on per capita income by county for all states except Puerto Rico.
https://factfinder.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/index.xhtml	Census Bureau's American Fact-finder: Provides census data including estimates on poverty, per capita income, and unemployment by counties, states, and metro areas, including Puerto Rico.
www.bls.gov	Bureau of Labor Statistics' Local Area Unemployment Statistics (LAUS): Provides data on annual and monthly employment and unemployment by counties for all states, including Puerto Rico.
http://www.ers.usda.gov/Data/ RuralUrbanContinuumCodes/	US Department of Agriculture's Rural-Urban Continuum Codes: Provides urban rural code for all counties in US.